BOA Meeting Agenda
Peculiar City Board of Aldermen
Work Session Meeting and Public Hearing
City Hall — 250 S. Main St
Monday February 2, 2015 6:30 p.m.

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Aldermen of the City of Peculiar will hold a regularly scheduled meeting
on Monday, February 2, 2015 at 6:30 pm, in the Council Chambers at 250 S. Main St. Representatives of the news
media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting the City Clerk at City Hall, 250 S. Main St Peculiar, MO
64078 or by calling 816-779-2221. All proposed Ordinances and Resolutions will be available for viewing prior to
the meeting in the Council Chambers.

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Board of Alderman Statement

5. Troutt Beeman & Co. — 2014 Audit presentation

Resolution 2015-05 - A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR,
MISSOURI TO RECEIVE AND ACCEPT THE AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014, WHICH ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014.

6. Twin Oaks HOA Update — Hubble Hill
7. Business
A. Bill No. 2015-02 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI AMENDING SEVERAL SECTIONS

OF CHAPTER 700, REPEALING SECTION 710.040 OF PECULIAR MUNICIPAL CODE AND ESTABLISHING
SECTIONS 700.015 AND 700.035 OF PECULIAR MUNICIPAL CODE.
*2"% Reading

B. Bill No. 2015-03 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI PROVIDING FOR THE EXTENSION
OF THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI BY EMBRACING AND INCLUDING
UNINCORPORATED REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN SECTIONS 9, AND 17 OF TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE
32 WEST Il;ldCASS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND HEREINAFTER PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED.

*2"" Reading

C. Bill No. 2015-06 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
INCREASING THE TERM OF MAYOR.
*1°' Reading

8. Topic for Discussion

A. Interlocal Agreement with Belton on NW area of the City for sewer service

B. Water and Sewer Rate Graph
9. Aldermen Concerns or Additional Topics for Discussion by Aldermen
10. Aldermen Directives Reported by City Administrator

11. Adjournment
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TB & Co.

TROUTT, BEEMAN & C0., PC.  CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council
City of Peculiar, Missouri

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental
activities, business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Peculiar, Missouri (the City), as
of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The City's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1. This
includes determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the
presentation of the financial statement in the circumstances. Management is also responsibie for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboui whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

1212 LOCUST 13470 5. ARAPAHO, SUITE 180
PQ BOX 160 PO BOX 4078
HARRISONVILLE, MO 64701 OLATHE, KS 66063
PHONE: 816-380-5500 1 PHONE: 913-764-1922

FAX: 816-380-2580 . WEB ADDRESS: WVW. TBCO.NET FAX: 913-764-8062



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective modified cash basis financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the City, as of September 30, 2014, the respective changes in
financial position-modified cash basis, and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention on Note 1 of the financial statements that describes the basis of accounting. The
financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of
accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, Our
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
~collectively comprise the City of Peculiar, Missouri's basic financial statements. The Missouri
Local Government Employees Retirement System, budgetary comparison information, building
schedule, and water and sewer systems information are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System presented on page 48, budgetary
comparison information on pages 47 to 59, building information on page 60, and water and sewer
systems information on pages 61 and 62, is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. We have applied certain limited procedures to the supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 28, 2015 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internai control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

s S £

arrisonville, Missouri
January 28, 2015




CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

. Activities Activities Total
ASSETS :
Cash $ 1218821 $ 144,951 $ 1,363,772
Restricted cash 152,129 2,980,708 3,132,837
Bond discounts, net of amortization - 46,172 46,172
internal balances - 195,958 (195,958) -
Capital assets:
Land 1,178,800 . 167,500 1,334,300
Construction in progress 1,005,512 36,218 1,041,730
Infrastructure 11,722,857 - 11,722,857
Water and sewer facilities and tranmission lines - 12,204,697 12,204,697
Vehicles and equipment 1,430,592 708,067 2,138,659
Buildings and improvements 1,852,135 319,745 2,171,880
Less: accumulated depreciation _ (4,525,585) (3.875,630) (8,401,225)
Total capital assets 12,662,301 9,550,597 22,212,898
Total assets ‘ : 14,229,209 12,526,470 26,755,679
LIABILITIES
Court bonds payable 5,560 - 5,560
" "Accrued liabilities ' o 27,828 20,320 48,148
Bond discount/premium, net of amortization 76,623 - 76,623
Meter deposits ' - 224 913 224913
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 95,056 582,193 677,249
Due in more than one year 2,144,004 8,773,640 10,917,644
Total liabilities 2,349,071 9.601.066 11,950,137
NET POSITION
Net investments in capital assets 10,401,531 1,319,766 11,721,297
Restricted for:
Debt service - 432,144 432,144
Capital projects 72,103 - 72,103
Grants 84,203 - 84,203
Unrestricted 1,322,301 1173494 2495795
Total net position $ 11,880,138 $ 2925404 $ 14,805 542

See accompanying notes.
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Functions/Programs
Primary government:

G
'sejou BulAuedwoooe asg

Governmental activities:
Elected officials
Administrative/finance
Law enforcement
Public works
Streets
Parks
Couris
Planning
Facilities
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Trash

Total business-type activities

Total primary.govemnment

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Net (Expenses) Revenues  and Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues . Primary Government
Charges for Operatiin Grants Capital Grants Governmental Businesas-type
Expenses Services and Contributions and Contributions Activities Activities Total

$ 44797 $ . $ - ¥ - $ (44797) $ - $ (44,797)
376,183 52,389 86,497 - (237,297) - (237,297)
1,093,263 256,436 45,459 - {791,368) - {791,368)
149,088 - - - {149,088) - {149,086)
916,676 - 79,311 - (837,365) - (837,365)
215,234 8,876 2,090 - (204,268) - (204,268)
88,586 - - - (88,586) - (88,586)
163,659 9,730 - - (153,920) - (153,920)
88,622 - - - (88,522) - (88,522)
96,398 - - - (96,398) - (86.398)
3,232,404 327.440 213,357 - (2.691.607) - (2.691.607)
1,240,061 1,214,770 - 19,650 - (5,641) (5,641}
1,112,283 1,177,758 - 9,825 - 75,300 75,300
266,989 274,417 - - - 7,428 7.428
2,619,333 2,666,945 - 29475 - 77,087 77,087

$ 5,861,737 $ 2,994,385 $ 213,357 $ 29,475 (2.691.607) 77,087 {2,614,520)

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes . 486,702 - 486,702
Franchise and other miscellaneous taxes 557,003 - 557,003
Local sales tax 1,104,924 - 1,104,924
Investment earnings 2,653 76,916 79,569
Miscellaneous 125,602 22,265 147,867
Transfers (43.604) 43,604 -
Total generat revenues 2,233,280 142,785 2 376,065
Change in net assets ~ (458,327) 219,872 (238,455)

Net position - beginning as restated 12,338,465 2,705,532 15,043,997

Net position - ending $ 11,880,138 $§ 2825404 $ 14,805,542
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ASEETS

ASSETS:
Cash
Due from others fumis
Reslricled cash

‘Total assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND

LIABILITIES:
Due: o ather funds
Other payables

Total Habilites
FUND BALANCES:
Restricted:

Read and sireal
Grants
Assigned:
Capital projecis
Parks and recreation
Road and street
Debi servica
Capital projects
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Talal liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

BALANCE SHEET— MODIFIED CASH BASIS —
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Road & Gasofine ’ Pabt " Capital East West 2012 COP 2013 Bonds 202 COP Total
General Pari Street Tax LET Bl Service Improvement Growth Growth Dekt Service Govemnmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

3 579558 § 32233 § - % - § - 8 - % - § 200187 § 8002 § 18,781 $ - 8 -8 - % 1218821
1,272,607 2,715 125,544 79,926 580 - 448,172 146,829 - - - - . 2,076,373

7.220 - - - - 89,908 - - - . - > 54,913 152,129

| 1859363 § 825060 0§ 125544 5 78036 0§ 580 3 88666 0§ 448177 2§ 436996 03 8002 5 18761 0§ - 8 - 5 54813 $_ aaTam
5 1,384,841 ] 45,782 ] 529 1] 8,467 4 - § 5793 5 241,597 $ 169,081 $ 2.900 L] 15,000 ] 16,921 ] 9,837 5 7% - 1.880.415
33,330 {156 308 308 {72 - - - - - - - - 33,388

1,397,871 45,598 8,776 {878) 5783 241,597 168,084 2900 15000 18,921 8,687 75 1,613,803

- - - 71,151 952 - - - - - . - . 72.108

- - . - - 84,203 - - - - - - - 84,203

- - - - - - - 287,915 - - - - - 267.815

- 279,454 - - - - - - - - - - 279454

- - 124,715 - - - - - - - - - - 124,715

. . - - . . 208,575 - . - - - 54,838 261,413
- - - - - - - - 5,102 3,761 (16,821) {6,637 - {17.885)

481,412 = = = = = = = = = = - =

— 481413 270454 124795 7494 852 B4203 __ 20857 ____@ATeNSs __ BA02 ¥ ___ (46,921) 18.837) 54,838 1,533 520
§ 1866363 8 325050 § 125564 2§ 7amm 560 $ @GEEE B 448172 0§ 439005 0§ AM2 0§ 18781 0§ - & 2 5 sam3 3 saaram

10



CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET --
MODIFIED CASH BASIS -- TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — MODIFIED CASH BASIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,533,520

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the fund financial statement, but are reported in the
governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position. ‘ 12,662,301

Premiums on bonds payable are not included in the fund financial statement, but are
included in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position. (76,623)

Long-term liabilities (such as Notes Payable, Capital Leases, and Bonds Payable)
are not due and payable in the current period and ars not inciuded in the fund ,
financial statement, but are included in the government-wide statements. {2,239.060)

Net Assets of governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 3 11,880,138

See accompanying notes.
7
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REVENUES:
Taxes
Franchise fees
Lieehses and permits
Intargovemnental
Charges for services
Fees and fines
Investment income:
Cther

Cendributions

EXPENDITURES:
Elected officlals

Admintstrative/finance
Law enforcement
Public works
Eireets
Parks
Cotwts
Planning
Faclities
Capital outiay
Debit service:
Principal
interest and fiscal charges

Excess (daficlency) of revenues
over expendiures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in {out)
Proceeds from long-term deht
Total uther financing sources (usas}
Net change in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, October 1, 2013

FUND BALANCES, September 30, 2044

CITY OF PECLILIAR, MISSOURI

‘STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —
WODIFIED CASH BASIS — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 20, 2014

Road & Gasoline Debt Capital East 2013 Bonds 2092 CopP
General Park Street Tax LET FBl Service Improvement Grawth [ i D vice
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Furd Fund
$ TROMM2Z 0§ 188795 § 180,105 § - 3 - 3 - $ 26568 2§ 204858 2§ - $ - & -
384,262 - - - . - . - - -
36,768 4,621 - - - - . - 5,000 - -
45,458 - 79,311 172341 - - - - - - -
9,739 &576 - - - - - - - . .
256,436 - - - - - - - - N
1,180 624 - - - 384 - 209 3 a9 137
95,061 28613 - - 1,908 - - - - - -
— BEADT 2,090 - - - - - - X . _
1,665,734 245619 269416 172741 1908 384 236,558 205,085 5005 as 137
44,797 - - . - B - - - - -
350,787 - - - 2,666 - - - - - -
a0a,128 - - - - - - B - - -
148,086 - - - - - - - - - -
- - 231,155 153,362 - - - - - - -
- 191,004 - - - - - - - - -
86,585 - - - - - - - - - -
163,659 - - - - - - - - - -
88,522 - - - - - - - - - -
71,622 .769 - - - 232,376 - 309477 2,800 247,000 -
128,708 7,200 - - - 111,060 25,000 21,435 - - 13,500
7,520 17,330 - - - - 55, 3,657 - - 12,261
1,901,113 250,303 237,755 153362 2666 1043376 80450  __ 334740  _ 2800 __ 247000 _ 35761
{215679) (15,684) 31,681 19,379 {758) {1,042,962) 156,108 (129,684) 2,105 - {246,911) (25,624)
140,757 4712y - - - - (107,763) - - (87 476) 25,586
116,571 - - - - - - 152,445 - - -
257,328 4112} - - - - (107.769) 152,445 - (87 476} 23,586
41,849 (20,396) 31,861 19,379 (758} (1,042,952} 48,339 2,761 2,105 (344,387 @8
41973 299850 93054 S 772 1710 1,127,185 1S8236 2451454 2007 334750 54,866
$_ #6imz2 5 2794E4 5 124715 0§ 71151 § 852 § 842303 § 206575 § 26795 2§ 5102 § (9630 5 _ 54838

12

Total

1,591,626
384,252
52,388
297,511

1511144

306,841
__5638

4,292, 735

{1475,054)

(43,604
269,016

_ a2
{1,249,642)

2,783,162

$ 1,523,520



CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS --
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (1,249,642)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures because such outlays
use current financial resources. In contrast, the Statement of Activities reports only a
portion of the outlay as expense. This Is the amount by which capital outlays, which are
over the capitalization threshhold, exceeded depreciation in the current period. - 749,495

Governmental funds report bond proceeds as current financial resources. In contrast, the
Statement of Activities treats such issuance of debt as a fiability. Governmental funds
report repayment of bond principal as an expenditure. In contrast, the Statement of Net
Position reports repayment as a reduction to long-term liabilities. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. This
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related

items. 41,820

Change in Net Position of governmental activities $ 7 (458,327)

See accompanying notes.
9
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOUR!

STATEMENT OF NET PCSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS --

ASSETS:
Current asseis:
Cash
Due from funds
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Restricted cash
Bond discount, net of amortization
Capital assets:
Construction in progress
l.and

Water and sewer facilities and transmission lines

Vehicles and equipment
Buildings and improvements
Less accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accruaed expenses
Due to funds
Meier deposits
Current portion of long-term obligations
Tofal current fiabilities
Non-current liabilities,
Bonds and notes payable
Total non-current liabilities

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
Total
Water Sewer Trash Proprietary
$ 144,951 - $ - $ 144,951
362,004 892,342 293,379 1,548,625
507,855 892,342 293,379 1,893,576
2,757,558 223,150 - 2,880,708
- 46,172 - 46,172
1,931 34,287 - 36,218
40,000 117,500 - 157,500
5,703,814 6,500,883 - 12,204,807
465,348 242,719 - 708,087
158,455 161,290 - 319,745
(2,326,564) {1,549,088) - (3,875,630)
4,042,084 5,507,613 - 9,550,597
7,308,397 6,660,277 293,379 14,271,053
16,811 3,548 161 20,320
743,999 098,861 1,723 1,744,583
203,319 21,594 - 224,913
244,015 338,178 - 582,193
1,207,944 1,362,181 1,884 2,572,000
5,375,037 3,398.603 - B.773.640
5375037 3,398,603 - 8.773,840
6.582.681 4760784 1,884 11,345,849
(652,622) 1,972,388 - 1,319,766
375,919 56,225 - 432,144
1,002,119 {120.120) 291,495 1,173,494
3 725,416 $ 1,908,493 $ 201,495 $  2,925404

10
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See accompanying notes.



CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -
MODIFIED CASH BASIS — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Total
Water Sower Trash Proprietary
OPERATING REVENUES,
Charges for services § 1,214,770 § 1,177,758 § 274,417 $ 2,666,945
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services 280,320 375,651 15,194 681,165
Contractuat and professional services 506,575 102,224 248,926 857,725
Materials and supplies 40,979 31,645 2,869 75,493
Repairs and maintenanca 26,457 105,302 “ 131,759
Insurance 2,438 2923 - 5,361
Utilitles - 77,845 - 77,845
Depreciation and amoriization 180,244 193,789 - 383,033
1,056,013 880,379 ___ 286,989 2,212,381
Income (loss) from operations 158,757 ___ 288379 7428 454,564
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest Income 73,850 3,366 - 76,916
Tower rental 22,265 - - 22,265
Bond Issue cost and Intarest expense {184,048) (222,004} n (406,952}
Qther 18,650 9,825 - 475
{68,563) (209,713) - (278.206)
Net income (ioss) before transfers 90,174 76,666 7428 176,268
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES);
Transfers in 130,598 56,007 - 185,685
Transfers out (147,926) (3,524) (641) (152,091)
(8,328) 52,573 (541} 43,604
Changs in net position 81,846 131,239 6,787 218,872
TOTAL NET POSITION - beginning as restated 643,570 1,777,254 284,708 2,705 532
TOTAL NET POSITICN - ending $ 725,416 $ 1,908,493 $ 291495 $ 2925404

See accompanying notes.
11
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Recelvad from customers
Payments to employees and fringe benefits
Payments to vendors and suppliers
Other receipts

Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Qpesrating transfers (to) from other funds
Net advances (to} from other funds

Net cash (used) provided by noncapital financing activitles
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Procesds from capital debt
Acquisltion and construetion of capital assets
Principal pald on capital debt and leases
Interest and fiscal charges paid on capital debt and Isases

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES,
Investment income

Net cash provided by investing activitles
Netdecrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1, 2013
Cash and cash equivalents, September 30, 2014
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities,
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Dapreciation and amortization expense
Miscellaneous nonoperating income
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accrued Ilabilities
Meter deposits
Total adjustients
Net cash provided by operating activities
Noncaeh Investing, capital, and financing activities:
Assets acquired through assumption of a liabftity

Assets acquired through a gift
Increase in receivables related to nonoperating income

Water Sewer Trash Total

$ 1,214,770 $ 1,177,758 B 274,417 $ 2,666,945
(292,758) {378,574) (15,194) (686,528)
(560,740} (313,468) {251,634) (1,125,842)

22 265 - - 22,265
383,637 4B5.716 7.588 876,842
(8,328) 52,573 (641) 43,604
266,603 (104,543) (6,848) 156,112
268,275 (51.970) ___ (7.589%) 198,716
1,306,968 30,988 - 1,337 957
{307,561) (487,487 - (795,048)
(468,062) (294,607) - (762,669)
(184,048) (222.904) - (408,952)
347,298 (874 9101 - (626,712)
73,550 3,366 - 76,918

. 73,550 3,366 - 768,816
1,062,660 (536,898) - 525,782
1,839 849 760.048 - 2,599,897

$  2,802500 § 223,150 8 - 3 3,125,659
3 158,757 8 288,379 $ 7.428 § 454 584
189,244 193,789 - 383,033
22,265 - - 22,265

1,786 3,548 161 5,485

11,485 - - 11485

224 780 197 337 161 422 278

3 383,637 $ 485,716 ] 7,589 $ 876,842

$ 1,306,969 L] 30,388 $ - ] 1,337,957

19,850 9,806 - 29,456

216,084 597,379 - 813,473

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The financial statements of the City of Peculiar, Missouri (the City), have been prepared on
a modified cash basis of accounting. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are
described below:

Reporting Entity: The City of Peculiar, Missouri (the “City"), was incorporated in 1953 ang
covers an area of approximately four square miles in Cass County, Missouri. Peculiar is a
fourth class city and is governed by a Mayor/Board of Aldermen form of government. A
board of six aldermen, two from each of the three wards of the City, and a mayor are
elected to two-year terms by the residents to administer the City government. The City
Administrator is the chief administrative officer of the City. The City provides services to
approximately 2,600 residents in the area, including law enforcement, water and sewer
services, streets and public works, planning and zoning, community enrichment and
development, and various social services. Fire protection services are provided by a fire
district which is a separate governmental entity. Primary and secondary education services
are provided by the Raymore-Peculiar School District, also a separate governmental entity.

Principles Used to Determine Scope of Entity: In determining the financial reporting entity,
the City complies with the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity,” and inciudes all component units of
which the City appointed a voting majority of the units” board and the City is either abie to
impose its will on the unit or a financial benefit or burden relationship exists.

The City has developed criteria to determine whether outside agencies with activities which
benefit the citizens of the City, including joint agreements, should be included within its
financial reporting entity. The criteria include, but are not limited to, whether the City
exercises oversight responsibility, which includes financial interdependency, selection of
governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence
operations, and accountability for fiscal matters, scope of public service and special
financing relfationships.

The City has determined that no other outside agency meets the above criteria and,
therefore, no other agency has been inciuded as a component unit in the City's financial

statements. In addition, the City is not aware of any entity which could exercise such
oversight which would result in the City being considered a component unit of the entity.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

‘Basis of Presentation: In the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial
statements for the proprietary funds, Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB)
pronouncements issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) and Accounting
Principles Board (APB) opinions have been applied unless those pronouncements conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. Although the City
has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type
activities and enterprise funds, the City has chosen not to do so. The accounting and
reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in this or
subsequent footnotes.

Government-Wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of
Activities display information about the reporting government as a whole. They include all
funds of the reporting entity. The statements distinguish between governmental and
business-type activities. Governmental activities generaily are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with and are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program receipts include (a) charges paid by the recipients for goods or services offered by
the programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Receipts that are not classified as program.
receipts, including all taxes, are presented as general receipts.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements of the reporting entity are
organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each
fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts which constitute
its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized into two major categories: governmental and proprietary. The governmental
group is further categorized into the general, special revenue, debt service, and capital
outlay fund groups. For purposes of major fund determination, each fund group will be
considered a major fund. Detailed information supporting the special revenue fund group
and capital outlay fund group will be provided in the other supplementary information

section.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
Fund Financial Statements (Continued):

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Fund Types

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are
financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the City’s expendable financial resources
and the related liabilities (other than those in Proprietary Funds) are accounted for through
Governmental Funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of changes in financial
position.

The following are the City’s Governmental fund types:

~The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City and accounts for all financial

transactions not accounted for in other funds. The general operating expenditures, fixed
charges, and capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are financed
through revenues received by the General Fund.

The Park & Recreation Fund accounts for revenues received and expenditures paid for
recreational services provided by the Park and Recreation Board. _

The Road and Street Fund accounts for state and local revenues that are restricted for local
street expenditures. :

The Gasoline Tax Fund accounts for motor vehicle revenues from the State that are
restricted for street expenditures.

The LET Fund accounts for law enforcement monies from the State that are restricted fo law
enforcement.

The FBl Fund accounts for the Federal forfeiture funds obtained from the Federal
Government that are restricted for capital purchases for law enforcement.

The Debt Service Funds are used for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of,
principal, interest, and fiscal changes on long-term debt that supports the water
improvement project. The City utilizes two of these funds: Debt Service Fund and 2012
COP Debt Service Fund.

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources segregated for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by Enterprise
funds. The City utilizes six of these funds: Capital Improvement Fund, East Growth Fund,
West Growth Fund, 2012 COP Bonds Fund, 2012 COP Construction Fund, and 2013 Bonds
Construction Fund. :
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Fund Financial Statements (Continued):

Enterprise Funds

The Proprietary Funds are used to account for the City's ongoing organizations and
activites which are similar to those often found in the private sector. The measurement
focus is based upon determination of net income. The City has three of these funds in
which the City provides services to the public: Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and Trash Fund.

Measurement Focus: Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are
recorded within the various financial statements. In the government-wide statement of net
assets and the statement of activities, both governmental and business-like activities are
presented using the economic resources measurement focus within the limitations of the
modified cash basis of accounting as defined in Item b below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the
“economic resources” measurement focus as applied to the modified cash basis of
accounting is used as appropriate.

a. All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only
current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets.
Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial
resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of
available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an “economic resources” measurement focus. The
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating
income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All
assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent, financial or nonfinancial)
associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net
assets.

Basis of Accounting: In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, Statement of
Activities, and the fund financial statements, governmental and business-like activities are
presented using a modified cash basis of accounting. This basis recognizes assets,
- liabilities, net assets/fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses when they result
from cash transactions with a provision for depreciation in the government-wide statements
and proprietary fund statements. This basis is a comprehensive basis of accounting other
than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
Basis of Accounting (Continued):

As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their
related revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services
not yet collected) and certain liabilities and their related expenses .(such as accounts
payable and expenses for goods or services received but not yet paid, and accrued
expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements.

If the City utilized the basis of accounting recognized as generally accepted, the fund
financial statements for governmental funds would use the modified accrual basis of
accounting, while the fund financial statements for proprietary fund types would use the
accrual basis of accounting. All government-wide financials would be presented on the
accrual basis of accounting.

In the Modified Accrual Basis, revenues would be recognized when “measurable and
available.” Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount.
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
current liabilities.

Expenditures (including capitat outlay) would be recorded when the related fund Iiability'is
incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reportable when
due.

In the Accrual Basis, revenues would be recognized when earned. Expenses (including

depreciation and amortization) would be recorded when the liability was incurred or an
economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting
from exchange and exchange-like transactions would be recognized when the exchange
took place. .

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity:

Cash: For the purpose of financial reporting, cash includes all demand money market and
savings accounts.

Restricted Cash_and Investments: Certain cash and investment accounts are restricted for
capital projects, debt service, and compliance with bond covenants, court bonds held, and
customer meter deposits.

Statement of Cash Flows: A statement of cash flows has been presented in accordance
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 9 for the Proprietary Fund. For
purposes of the statement of cash flows, demand deposits, and all highly liguid investments
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash
equivalent. '
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Capitalized Assets - Governmental Funds: Capitalized assets, which include capital assets
and infrastructure, are expensed when purchased for fund statement presentation in
governmental funds. Capitalized assets purchased in the proprietary fund for fund
statement presentation and in all government-wide financial statements are reported as an
asset and depreciated.

As the City did not include capitalized asset accounting prior to September 30, 2004, a list of
capital assets purchased prior to September 30, 2003, was prepared using various sources.
Capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is
unavailable, except for donated capital assets which are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation.

In accordance with GASB 34, the recording of infrastructure for governmental funds could
be delayed for four years from the effective date beginning October 1, 2003. After GASB 34
implementation, management decided to utilize this deferral of infrastructure recording and
initially recorded infrastructure in the year ended September 30, 2008.

Capitalized Assets - Proprietary Funds: All capitalized assets in the proprietary fund afe
recorded at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful life.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
~ statement of activities with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net
assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method of depreciation. A capitalization threshold of $1,000 is used to report capital
assets. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Building and building improvements 25-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Land improvements 10-20 years
Vehicles 5-7 years
Office equipment and furniture 3-10 years
Infrastructure 25-50 years
Computer equipment, hard & soft 3-6 years

Long-Term Debt: All long-term debt is recorded in the governmental funds as sither a note
payable or bonds issued in the government-wide financial statements. In the fund
statements, bond issuance proceeds are recorded as revenues and principal payments on
debt service are recorded as expenditures of the period.

Compensated Absences: The City's policy allows employees to accumulate paid time off
(PTO) hours each year and carryover to the following year. A maximum dollar limit,
depending upon years of continuous employment, is paid upon termination for these hours.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):;
Assets, Liabilities, and Equity (Continued):

In addition, police enforcement officers earn compensation time and are paid for unused
time upon termination. As these financial statements are prepared on the modified cash
basis of accounting, this possible liability is not recorded.

Equity Classification: Government-Wide Statements - Equity is classified as net position and
displayed in three components as follows:

a. Net invesiment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumuiated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes,
or other borrowing that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets.

b. Restricted net position consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either
by external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of
other governments; or through constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

¢. Unrestricted net position do not meet the definition of “restricted.”

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net
assets when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Financial Statements - Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses:

Program Recsipts: In the Statement of Activities, modified cash basis receipts that are
derived directly from each activity or from parties outside the City's taxpayers are reported
as program revenues. The City has the following program revenues in each activity:

Administrative/Finance - Permits and fees

Law Enforcement Fines and grants

Public Works Motor vehicle franchise fees
Streets Intergovernmental revenue
Parks Permits and fees

Planning Permits and fees

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general
revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

Sales Tax: Local sales taxes are collected and remitted monthly by the Department of
Revenue, State of Missouri. The City collects an amount equivalent to 1 cent sales tax to
the general fund, % cent sales tax to the capital improvements fund, % cent transportation
sales tax to the general fund, and % cent sales tax for the park fund.

Property Tax: Each budget year, the City approves a tax rate for the upcoming fiscal year.
The general fund and debt service fund receives property tax. Cass County collects
property taxes and remits the portion of the City's share to the City.

Gasoline/Vehicle Tax: The City receives a share of the state gasoline and vehicle tax
charged and collected by the State. These taxes support the general fund.

Franchise Fees: Franchise fees are collected by the City from utility companies for the use
of City right of way. This revenue supports the general fund.

Licenses and Permits: The City requires various businesses to be licensed or obtain permits
in order to conduct business within the City. This revenue supports the general fund,
special revenue fund, and capital outlay fund.

Charges for Services: The City provides several services for which the charges are collected
and support the general fund.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses (Continued):

Operating Revenues and Expenses: Operating revenues and expenses for the proprietary
fund are those that result from providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or
services. It also includes all revenues and expenses not related to capital and related
financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities.

Expenditures/Expenses: In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are
reported on the modified cash basis and are classified by function for both governmental
and business-type activities. There have been certain allocations of indirect expenses to
functions in the statement of activities. In the fund financial statements, expenditures are
classified as Governmental Funds - by department and Proprietary Fund - by operating and
non-operating. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of
financial resources. The proprietary fund reports expenses relating to use of economic
resources.

Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities: In the process of aggregating the financial
information for the government-wide statement of net assets and statement of activities,
some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements
have been eliminated or reclassified.

Fund Financial Statements - Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental
and proprietary fund categories is reported as follows in the fund financial statements:

fnterfund Reimbgrsemenfs - Repayments from funds responsible for certain
expenditures/expenses to funds that initially paid for them are not reported as
adjustments to expenditures or revenues but as transfers.

Government-Wide Financial Statements - Interfund activity and balances, if any,
are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial statements.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the other
comprehensive basis of accounting (OCBOA) used by the City requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures (such
as estimated useful lives in determining depreciation expense). Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Differences from GAAP: As discussed under Basis of Accounting, the City reports both the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements on a modified cash
basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally
accepted accounting principles.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Fund Equity: In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate
amounts for five classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the
use of these resources. The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts
that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form — prepaid items or
inventories; or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

The spendable portion of the fund baiance comprises the remaining four classifications:
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Restricted fund balance - This classification reflects the constraints imposed on
resources either (a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance - These amounts can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the Board of
Alderman - the government's highest level of decision making authority. Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of
Alderman removes the specified use by taking the same type of action imposing the
commitment. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent
that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in
satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned fund balance - This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the
City's “intent” to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor
committed. The Board of Alderman and the City Administrator have the authority to
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund balance include all
remaining amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in the governmental
funds, other than the General Fund, that are not classified as nonspendable and are
neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the
General Fund. It is also used to report negative fund balances in other

governmental funds.

When both restricted an unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to
“use externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources-—committed, assigned,
and unassigned—in order as needed.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY:

By its nature as a local government, the City is subject to various federal, state, and local
laws and regulations. An analysis of the City's compliance with significant laws,
regulations, grants, and contracts over City resources is as follows:

Fund Accounting Requirements: The City complies in all material respects with state and
local laws and regulations requiring the use of separate funds. The legally required funds
used by the City include the following:

Fund Required by
Debt Service State Law
Road and Street State Law
Capital Improvement Board Ordinance
East and West Growth Board Ordinance

Uninsured and Under-Collateralized Deposits: In accordance with state law, all uninsured
deposits of municipai funds in financial institutions must be secured with acceptable
collateral. Acceptable collateral includes certain U.S. government agency securities and
certain state or political subdivision debt obligations. At September 30, 2014, all of the
City’s deposits were collateralized. '

Property Taxes: The assessed valuation of property, including railroad and utility
properties, located in the City as of July 31, 2013, on which the fiscal year 2014 levy was
based, is as follows:

Real estate ' | $ 45433 172
Personai property 8,737,549
Total $ 54,170,721

The tax levies per $100 of assessed valuation of tangible real and personal property for the
calendar year 2013, were as follows:

General Fund $ 4556
Debt Service 4070
$ .8626

Taxes are levied no later than October 31 and are due and payable at that time. All unpaid
taxes levied by October 31 become delinquent January 1 of the following year. Property
taxes may attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.

Net Asset/Fund Equity Restriction: State law prohibits the creation of a deficit fund balance
in any individual fund. As of September 30, 2014, the City had no deficit fund balances,
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:
At September 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the City's demand deposits in financial
institutions was $1,779,765. The bank balances of demand deposits were fully insured with a
combination of FDIC insurance and pledged coliateral held in the name of the City.

At September 30, 2014, the City's investments consisted of the following:

Carrying Fair

Amount Value
Money Market $ 1,606,906 $ 1,606,906
State Revolving Fund (Controlled by State) 1,108,652 1,108,652

$ 2,715,558 $ 2,715558

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of investments will be adversely affected by a
change in interest rates. The City generally intends to buy and hold the securities in its
portfolios, and to sell only when a gain is present or when a swap that offers substantial
economic gain is available. During the next fiscal year, the City does not intend to sell any
securities at a loss in order to meet cash requirements.

At September 30, 2014, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Invesiment maturities (in years)

Less Greater than
Value than one 1-5 five
Investment type:
Money Market $ 1606906 § 1606906 $ $ -
State Revolving Fund 1,108,652 168,148 12170 928,349
§ 2715558 § 1775054 § 12170 $ 928349
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Credit risk is measured using credit quality ratings of investments in debt
securities as described by nationally recognized rating agencies such as Standard & Poor's
and Moody's. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of
investment in a single issuer.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued):
Credit Risk(Continued):

Missouri State Statutes authorize the City, with certain restrictions, to deposit funds in open
accounts, time deposits, and certificates of deposit. Statutes also require that collateral
pledged have a fair market value equal to 100% of the funds on deposit, less insured
amounts. Collateral securities must be held by the City or a disinterested third party and must
be of the kind prescribed by statutes and approved by the State. The City may purchase any
investments allowed by the State Treasurer. These include (a) obligations of the United
States government or any agency or instrumentality thereof maturing and becoming payable
not more than three years from the date of purchase, or (b) repurchase agreements maturing
and becoming payable within 90 days secured by U.S. Treasury obligations or obligations of
U.S. government agencies or instrumentalities of any maturity, as provided by law.

The City’s general credit risk policy is to apply to prudent person rule: Investments shall be
made with the exercise of that judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which
individuals of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probability safety of their
capital, as well as the probable income to be derived.

Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk of
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty fo a transaction, the
City wilf not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City’s policy is to collateralize deposits with securities
held by the financial institution’s agent and in the City's name.

A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash on hand $ 1,286
Demand deposits 1,779,765
State Revolving Fund 1,108,652
Money markets 1,606,906

Total ‘ $ 4496,609
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CiTY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RESTRICTED CASH:

Restricted cash in the governmental funds at September 30, 2014, consisted of the
following:

Restricted for municipal bonds

$ 7,220

Restricted for grants ' 89,996
Restricted for capital prolects and

debt service 54,913

$ 152,129

Restricted cash in the proprietary funds at September 30, 2014, consisted of the following:

‘Restricted for meter deposits

$ 224913
Restricted for bond covenant requirements 2.755,795
$ 2,980,708
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Capital asset activity resulting from modified cash basis transactions for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2014, was as follows:

Balance at Balance at
10/1/2013 Additions Deductions 9/30/2014
Governmental activities;
- Capital assets not being depreciated: .
Land $ 1096800 % Bo00D $ - % 1,176,800
Construction in progress 758,512 247,000 - 1,005,512
Total not being depreciated 1,885,312 327,000 - 2,182,312
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 1,615,535 236,600 - 1,852,135
Office equipment and furniture 117,249 4,635 - 121,884
Machinery and equipment 127,820 298,629 - 426,549
Vehicles 351,535 530,624 - 882,159
Infrastructure 11.722 857 ‘ - - 11,722,857
Total being depreciated 13,935,096 1,070,488 - 15,005,584
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 368,681 51,259 - 419,940
Office equipment and furniture 88,881 7,697 - 96,578
Machinery and equipment 43,187 62,432 - 105,619
Vehicles ' 238,756 136,954 - 375,710
Infrastructure 3,138,098 389,650 - 3,527,748
Totat accumulated depreciation 3877603 647 992 - 4,525,595
Capital assets being depreciated, net 10,057,493 . 422 496 - 10,479,989
Governmental capital assets, net $ 11912805 § 74949 $ - $ 12,662,301

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows in the Statement of Activities:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 22 201
Police 166,707
Municipal court , -
Streets 440,801
Parks _ 18194

$ 647,993
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued):

Business-type aclivities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets
not being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Vehicles and equipment
Building and improvements
Water, sewer facilities,
and transmission lines .

Total other capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery and equipment
Building and improvements
Water, sewer facilities,
and transmission lines
Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net

Business-type capital assets, net

Balance at Balance at
10/1/2013 Additions Deductions 9/30/2014
$ 157,500 § - $ - $ 157,500
- 36,218 - 36218

157,500 36,218 - 193,718
579,477 128,590 - 708,067
319,745 - - 319,745
11,544,879 659,818 - 12,204,697
12,444,101 788.408 - 13,232,509
452,321 66,414 - 518,735

8,976 8,452 - 17.428
3,034,114 305,353 - 3,339,467
3,495,411 380,219 : 3,875,630
8,948,690 408,189 - __ 9,356,879

$ 9106190 § 444407 $ - § 9550597

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows in the Statement of Activities:

Business-type activities:

Sewer
Water
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT:

Governmental Activities

Changes in the debt for the year ended September 30, 2014, consisted of the following:

Balance Balance Amount Dus
October 1, September 30, Within One
2013 Additions Retirements 2014 Year
General Obligation Bonds $ 1,039,999 $ - $ 24999 $ 1,015,000 $ 30,000
Note Payable 234,688 - 234 686 - -
Capital Lease - 269,016 26,456 242 560 44,356
Ceriificates of Participation 1,315,000 - 333,500 981,500 20,700

$ 2,589,685 $ 269,016 $ 619641 $ 2,239,060 $ 95056

General Obligation Bonds

In October 2012, the City issued $1,039,999 in General Obligation Bonds for the purpose of
road improvements to 211th Street Highway Overpass. Payments are due in semi-annual
installments of $24,999 to $75,000 through 2032; interest at 1.5% to 3.1%.

Future minimum bond payments are as follows:

Years ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 30,000 $ 47,338 $ 77,338
2016 30,000 47,338 77,338
2017 30,000 47,338 77,338
2018 30,000 47,338 77,338

2019 55,000 21,925 76,925
2020-2024 290,000 94,300 384,300
2025-2029 330,000 57,594 387,594
2030-2033 220,000 10,349 230,349

$ 1,015000 § 373520 $ 1,388,520
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Certificate of Participation

In June 2012, $705,000 of Certificates of Participation were issued for the purpose of
acquiring, constructing, installing, furnishing, and equipping City Hall and other capital
improvements. Rental payments are due June 1, starting on May 1, 2013, with the fina|
payment due on May 1, 2032. Interest payments are due on November 1 and May 1.
Rental payments are payable from funds appropriated by the City through General Fund
revenues. The City has not pledged general tax revenues, funds, or money to pay this
obligation.

The base lease between the City as a lessor and First Bank of Missouri as lessee and
trustee, transfer a leasehold interest in certain real property held by the City to the trustes.
The term of the base lease is June 1, 2012, through May 1, 2023, or the date the
certificates have been paid in full, whichever is earlier.

Advanced Refunding

In June 2013, the City issued 2013A Tax-Exempt Refunding Certificates of Participation of
$2,445,000 and 2013B Taxable Refunding Certificates of Participation of $195,000 to
advance refund $2,530,000 of outstanding 2007 Certificates of Participation. This advance
refunding was undertaken to reduce the total debt service payments by $621,200 which
resulted in an-economic gain of $426,756.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Years ending
September 30, Principal Interest Totai
2015 $ 20,700 $ 27127 $ 47,827
2016 20,700 26,840 47,540
2017 21,900 26,495 48,395
2018 24,600 26,087 50,687
2019 57,000 25,295 82,295
2020-2024 409,500 101,611 511,111
2025-2029 348,800 39,072 387,872
2030-2033 78,300 6,269 84,569

$ 981500 $ 278796 $ 1,260,206
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Business-Type Activities
Changes in the debt for the year ended September 30, 2014, consisted of the following:

Balance Balance Amount Due
October 1, September 30, Within One
2013 Additions Retirements 2014 Year
Notes Payable $ 1174746 § - % 251,300 $ 923448 § -
Certificates of Participation 2,317,800 .- 34,300 2,283,500 34,300
Revenue Bonds 4,528,000 1,245,000 369,000 5,404,000 414,000
General Obligation Bonds 695,000 - 90,000 605,000 110,000
Capital Leases - 92,957 13,070 79,887 17,893
Neighborhood Improvement

District 65,000 - 5,000 80,000 6,000

$ 8780546 § 1337957 $ 762670 $ 9355833 $ 582,193

Neighborhood Improvement District (NID)

On April 15, 2002, the City issued $103,000 in Neighborhood Improvement District-Sallee
-Estates Sewer Instaliment. Project General Obligation Bonds to finance a-sewer project in
the Sallee Estates Addition. This issue is to be repaid through a special tax assessment on
the citizens of the District benefitted. Bonds are due in annual installments varying from
year to year until maturity on March 1, 2022. Interest is due on March 1 and September 1.
Interest rates range from 5% to 5.8%.

Neighborhood Improvement District Bonds are general obligation issues even though their
purpose is for business activity asset. As special assessment taxes are used to liquidate
the debt, the revenue and expense transactions are accounted for in the Debt Service Fund
(a governmental fund). In years when special assessment revenues do not meet the
required payments, enterprise funds have been required.

The bond proceeds were used to produce capital assets which are recorded in the
proprietary fund. The corresponding liability for bonds payable are also recorded in the

proprietary fund. The capital asset is depreciated annually and the liability reduction paid
by the debt service fund results in calculations affecting capital assets net of related debt.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Future minimum NID general obligation bond payments are as follows:

Years ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 6000 $ 3306 § 9,306
2016 7,000 2,929 9,929
2017 7,000 : 2,523 9,523
2018 7,000 2,117 9,117
2019 7,000 1,711 8,711
2020-2024 26,000 2,320 28,320

$ 60,000 $ 14,906  $ 74,906

The above NID payments are scheduled to be paid with tax dollars obtained from special
assessments unless a tax shortage occurs. Over the life of the NID, tax dollars have been
collected to meet ali payment obligations.

General Obligation Bonds

On June 1, 1999, the City issued $1,500,000 of Water Pollution Control General Obligation
Bonds (State Revoiving Fund Program - Multiple Participant Series). The purpose was for
the extension and improvement of the City's combined waterworks and sewerage system.
This issue can either be paid by an annual tax levy approved by the Board or by revenues
of the proprietary fund. Bonds are due in annual instalments varying from year to year until
maturity on January 1, 2019. Interest is payable on January 1-and July 1. Interest rate
ranges from 3.625% to 5.25%. '

32

36



CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Bond proceeds were used to produce capital assets which are recorded in the enterprise
fund. The corresponding liability for bonds payable is also recorded in the proprietary fund.
Capital assets are depraciated annually and the liability reduction paid by the debt service
fund results in calculation affecting capital assets net of related debt. Future minimum
general obligation bond payments are as follows:

Years ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 110000 27925 $ 137,925
2016 115,000 22,019 137,019
2017 120,000 16,000 136,000
2018 125,000 9,875 134,875

2019 135,000 3,375 138,375

$ 605000 3 79194 $ 684,194

The above general obligation issue payments are scheduled to be paid with tax dollars
levied by the Board on an annual basis. If tax dolfars are not adequate to make the
payments, then proprietary funds will be used.

Revenue Bonds

On August 1, 1994, the City issued $2,605,000 in Water Pollution Control Revenue Bonds
(State Revolving Fund Program - Multiple Participant Series). The funds were used for
expansion and improvement of the enterprise fund systems. Bond and interest payments
are to be paid with proprietary fund revenues. Bonds are due July 1 from year to year until
maturity on July 1, 2015. Interest is payable on January 1 and July 1. Interest rates range
from 4.25% to 6.05%.

On June 1, 1999, the City issued $1,365,000 in Water Pollution Control Revenue Bonds
(State Revolving Fund Program - Multiple Participant Series). The purpose was for the
extension and improvement of the City’s combined waterworks and sewerage system.
Bonds and interest payments are io be made with proprietary revenues. Bonds are due in
annual installments varying from year to year until maturing on January 1, 2020. Interest is
payable on January 1 and July 1. Interest rates range from 3.625% to 5.25%.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

On November 14, 2007, the City issued $605,000 in Combined Waterworks and Sewerage
System Refunding Revenue Bonds. The funds are to be used for refunding the Series
1993 and 1994B balances and new funds for additional improvements. Bonds and interest
payments are to be made with proprietary revenues. Bonds are due in annual installments
varying from year to year until maturity on January 1, 2018. Interest is payable on
January 1 and July 1. Interest rates range from 4.1% to 4.2%.

On February 24, 2011, the City issued $3,125,000 in Combined Waterworks and Sewerage
System Revenue Bonds. The funds are to be used for improvement of the City’s combined
waterworks and sewerage system. Bond and interest payments are to be made with
proprietary revenues. Bonds are due in annual installments varying from year to year until
maturity on January 1, 2013. Interest is payable on January 1 and July 1. Interest ranges
from 1% to 5.75%.

On December 5, 2013, the City issued $1,245.000 in Combined Waterworks and Sewerage
System Revenue Bonds. The funds are to be used for the purpose of extending and
improving the combined waterworks and sewerage system. Bond and interest payments
are to be made with proprietary revenues. Bonds are due in annual instaliments varying
from year to year until maturity on November 1, 2033. Interest is payable on May 1 and
November 1. Interest ranges from 1% to 4.25%. '

Future minimum revenue bond payments are as follows:

Years ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 414,000 $ 237,141 $ 651,141
2016 420,000 214,096 634,096
2017 435,000 198,152 633,152
2018 510,000 179,837 689,837
2019 270,000 164,547 434 547
2020-2024 1,120,000 678,478 1,798,478
2025-2029 1,330,000 406,038 1,736,038
2030-2033 905,000 73,939 978,939

$ 5404000 §$ 2152228 $ 7556228

Revenue bonds are collateralized by the revenue of the water and sewer systems.
Ordinances provide that the revenue of the system is to be used to pay operating and
maintenance expenses fo include debt service. As long as bonds are outstanding, monies
derived from operations cannot be directed to the general government or municipal
functions of the City. :
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

The City maintains its records and this report has besn prepared using the madified cash
basis of accounting. Article Il, Section 2.2 u (ii) of Series 1994A. Combined Waterworks
and Sewage System Refunding and Improvement Bonds, states that the City shali maintain
system records in accordance with generally accepted governmental-accounting standards
defined in the Governmental Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting Manual (1988
Ed.) issued by the Government Finance Officers’ Association.

Proceeds from the original bond sales were placed in trust to establish reserve and debt
servicing accounts. These accounts have been maintained as required.

Rates and fees established and charged were sufficient to satisfy bond covenant
responsibilities for the year ended September 30, 2014.

The City, by ordinance, also participates in the State Revolving Fund Program (SRF)
Series 1994A and Series 1999A. These programs require the state to place 70% of the
total bond issue in an escrow trust for the City. The interest earned on the escrow funds is
transferred to the trust debt service fund to help pay the City's required interest payments
on the bonds. As principal payments are made, the state reclaims 70% of the principal
payment. The state SRF reserve is included in the bond issue trust funds and the City has
elected to record the SRF reserve as a restricted investment on their statement of net
assets. A corresponding liability is also recorded.

Refunding Certificate of Participation

In June 2013, the City issued $2,640,000 in Refunding Certificates of Participation. The
funds are to be used for refunding the Series 2007 Certificates of Participation. Rental
payments are due January 1, starting on January 1, 2019, with the final payment due on
January 1, 2027. Interest is payable on January 1 and July 1 ranging from 1% to 5.75%.
Rental payments are payable with enterprise operating funds. The City appropriates
(budgets) funding for this debt.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

The base lease between the City, as lessor, and Southwest Trust Company N.A., as lessee
and trustee, transfer a leasehold interest in certain real property held by the City to the -
trustee. The term of the base lease is November 14, 2007 through January 1, 2027, or the
date the certificates have been paid in full, whichever is earlier. Future minimum lease
payments are as follows:

Years ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2015 ' 8 34,300 $ 61,465 $ 95,765
2016 34,300 60,963 95,263
2017 38,100 60,341 98,441
2018 40,400 59,592 99,992
2019 143,000 57,818 200,818

2020-2024 1,090,500 224,700 1,315,200
2025-2029 836,200 62,661 898,861
2030-2033 66,700 6,269 72,969

$ 2283500 $§ 593,809 § 2877,300
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL LEASES:

The City has entered into lease agreements for financing capital equipment and a building.
The lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes, therefore have
been recorded at the present value of their future lease payments as of the inception date.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Asset
Police annex building | | $ 116,571
Police, water, and sewer vehicles 245,402
Total assets acquired $ 361,973

The future minimum lease payments and the present value of the remaining minimum
lease payments as of September, 30, 2014, are as follows:

Years Ending
September 30,
2015 $ 68,723
2016 69,545
2017 70,344
2018 71,161
2019 32,134
2020-2024 31,566
343,473
Less: amount representing interest _ 21,026
Present value of future minimum
lease payments $ 322447
Governmental activities $ 242560
Business-type activities 79,887
$ 322447
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS:

Interfund due from and due to balances at September 30, 2014, were as follows:

Due From Due To
General Fund $ 1,272,607 $ 1,364,641
Parks Fund 2,715 45,782
Street Fund 125,544 : 521
Gasoline Tax Fund 79,926 8,467
LET Fund 580 -
FBI Fund _ - 5,793
Capital Improvement Fund 146,829 169,081
East Growth Fund - 2,900
West Growth Fund ' - 15,000
2012 COP Consruction Fund - 16,921
2013 Bond Construction Fund - 9,637
Debt Service Fund ' 448,172 241,597
2012 Debt Service Fund - 75
Water Fund 362,904 743,999
Sewer Fund 892,342 998,861
Trash Fund 293,379 _1,723

$ 3,624,998 $ 3,624,998

Interfund transactions occurred in several areas during the current year.

1. The City's general fund collects property taxes and distributes the appropriate
amounts to the debt service fund.

2. Bond payments are made with tax dollars out of the enterprise fund for waterworks
improvements. The liability for these bonds is recorded in the enterprise fund. A
transfer of tax dollars is made to the enterprise fund to make the payments.

3. Fund transfers were made from the debt service fund to the enterprise fund.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued):

Transfers during the year ended September 30, 2014, were as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Qut
General Fund $ 262,987 $ 122,230
2012 COP Bonds : - 97,476
Park Fund - 4,712
Debt Service Fund - 107,769
2012 COP Debt Service 37,063 11,467
Water Fund 139,598 147,926
Sewer Fund 56,097 3,524
Trash Fund - 641

$ 495,745 $ 495,745

EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN:

Plan Description

The City participates in the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System
(LAGERS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as g
common investment and administrative agent for local government entities in Missouri.
LAGERS is a defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement, disability, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. LAGERS was created and is governed by
state statute, Section RSMo. 70.600-70.755. As such, it is the system's responsibility to
administer the law in accordance with the expressed intent of the General Assembly. The
plan is qualified under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and it is tax exempt.

The Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained by writing to LAGERS, PO Box 1665, Jefferson City, Missouri
65102 or by calling 1-800-447-4334.

Funding Status

The City's full-time employees do not contribute to the pension plan. The June 30th
statutorily required contribution rates are 13.7% (General) and 14.6% (Police) of annual
covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by the
governing body of the political subdivision. The contribution provisions of the political
subdivision are established by state statute.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN (Continued):

Annual Pension Cost (APC) and Net Pension Obligation (NPO)

The subdivision’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the current year were
as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 161,334
Interest on net pension obligation 114
Adjustment to annual required contribution (163)
Annual pension cost 161,345
Actual contributions 161,334
Increase (decrease) in NPO 11
NPO beginning of the year 1,572
NPO end of the year $ 1,683

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of the February 28, 2011,
and February 29, 2012, annual actuarial valuations using the entry age actuarial cost
method. The actuarial assumptions as of February 28, 2014, included: (a) a rate of return
on the investment of present and future assets of 7.25% per year, compounded annualiy,
(b) projected salary increases of 3.5% per year, compounded annually, attributable to
inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.0% to 6.0% per year,
depending on age and division, attributable to seniority/merit, (d) pre-retirement mortality
based on 75% of the RP-2000 Combined Healthy table set back 0 years for men and 0
years for women and (e) post-retirement mortality based on 105% of the 1994 Group
Annuity Mortality table set back 0 years for men and 0 years for women. The actuarial
value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of shori-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed
basis. The amortization period as of February 28, 2011, was 22 years for the General
division and 26 years for the Police division. The amortization period as of February 28,
2012, was 26 years for the General division and 19 years for the Police division.

Three-Year Trend information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension

Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2012 $ 137,927 100% $ 1,658
2013 $ 159,840 100.0% $ 1,572
2014 $ 161,345 100.0% $ 1,683
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN:

The City provides for a deferred compensation plan for their employees. Funds are paid to
and retained by ING in individual employee accounts. There is no cost to the City in the
operation of this plan. The deferred compensation plan is designed to comply with Internal
Revenue Code 457.

COUNTY ROAD TAX:

Road tax is remitted to the county by the state to be distributed to each City for the purpose
of road upkeep. The county distributes these funds after the City makes the expenditure
and submits the appropriate paperwork.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The City is exposed to various risks of loss from torts, theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; business interruptions; errors and omissions; employee injuties and illnesses:
natural disasters; and employee health, dental and accident benefits. Commercial
insurance coverage has been purchased by the City to cover all risks.

CONTINGENCIES:

The Cityis a defendant in various lawsuits arising from normal business activities.
Management has reviewed pending litigation with legal counsel and believes that ultimate
liability, if any, resulting from these matters will not materially affect the City's financial
position.

- Additionally, the City's sewer and water utilities are subject to federal and state regulations

relating to the discharge of materials into the environment. Compliance with these
provisions has not had, nor does the City expect such compliance to have, any material
effect upon the financial condition of the City. Management of the City believes that its
current practices and procedures for the control and disposition of such wastes comply with
applicable federal and state requirements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS:
During the year ended September 30, 2014, the City relied upon the Public Water Supply

District #2 (PWSD #2) for water which was resold to customers. The City has an ongoeing
contract with PWSD #2 to purchase water. PWSD #2 makes rate adjustments periodically.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF BUDGET APPROPRIATION:

The 2013 Bond Construction Fund's actual expenditures exceeded budgetary amounts by
$9,726, which is in violation of Missouri state statutes.

In 2013, the City received monies through the Federal Forfeiture program. When the
budget was made the actual amount of monies was not known. The FBl Fund's actual
expenditures exceeded budgetary amounts by $43,376, which is in violation of Missouri
state statutes.

PLEDGED REVENUES:

The City has pledged future water and sewer customer revenues, net of specified operating
expenses, to repay four debt issues totaling $4,889,000. The 1994, 1999, 2007, 2011, and
2013 bonds were issued in the amounts of $2,605,000, $1,365,000, $605,000, $3,125,000,
and $1,245,000 respectively. Proceeds from the bonds were used for the expansion and
improvement of the waterworks arid sewerage system as well as the refunding of prior
debt. The bonds are payable from the sewer and water funds net revenues and are
payable through 2034. The ftotal interest and principal remaining on the bonds is
$7,5566,228. Principal and interest paid for the current year is $601,326.

EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

In October 2014, the City issued Series 2014 Combines Waterworks and Sewerage
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds in the amount of $3,685,000. The City has
evaluated subsequent events through January 28, 2015, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

HOUSE BILL 103:

House Bill 103 amending Section 302.341.2 RSMo became effective on August 28, 2013.
The amendments to the statute now require municipalities to report an accounting of the
percent of annual general operating revenue from fines and court costs for traffic violation.
Total police fines and court costs revenues for the fiscal year, which include fines and court
costs related to traffic violations, summed to $256,346. "Annual general operating revenue
of the city" is not defined in the amended statute and may or may not include various
sources of City's revenues. However, the City's general tax revenue, franchise fees, and
fines totaled $1,411,010. Using the general sales tax and total fines and court costs as the
“annual general operating revenue," the City's total police fines and court costs revenues
are only 18.2% of this total "annual general operating revenue,” which is substantially
below the 30% threshold requirement of the amended statute. This demonstrates at a
minimum that the City did not exceed the percentage requirement regardless of how
"annual general operating revenue" is calculated.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS:

Change in accounting principle - For the year ended September 30, 2014, the City
implemented GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assels and Liabilities.
This resulted in an adjustment to the beginning net position for sewer fund on the statement of
activities for 2014 of ($49,732) and an adjustment to the beginning net position for the water
fund of ($83,638). Adjustment was required to the Statement of Activities - Modified Cash
Basis for Governmental Activities for 2014 of ($70,034). The adjusiment is required to
remove bond costs no longer required to be capitalized in accordance with GASB 65.

Change in debt structure - For the year ended September 30, 2014, the City restructured one
debt issue which was previously recorded as Governmental debt. The allocation of the debt
has been changed to 25% water, 25% sewer, and-50% governmental. This resulted in an
adjustment to beginning net position on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in
fund net position for 2014 for both water and sewer of $156,400. This also resulted in a
change to beginning net position on the Statement of Activities - Modified Cash Basis for
Governmental Activities of $312,800 and Business-type Activities of ($312,000).

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - Modified Cash Basis

Water Fund Sewer Fund
Net position as originally reported Setember 30, 2013 $ 883,608 $ 1,983,386
Elimination of bond costs (83,638) (49,732)
Change in debt structure {156,400) (158,400)
Net position as restated Septem ber 30,-2013 $ 643,570 $ 1,777,254
Statement of Activities -~ Modified Cash Basis
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Net position as originally reported Setember 30, 2013 $ 12,095,699 $ 3,151,702
Elimination of bond costs {70,034) {133,370)
Change in debt structure 312,800 {312,800)
Net position as restated September 30, 2013 $ 12,338,465 $ 2,705,532
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The City prepares its budget for all governmental funds on the modified cash basis of
accounting. This basis is consistent with the basis of accounting used in preparing and
presenting the basic financial statements. All unexpended appropriations lapse at year-
end.

1) Prior to September 1, management submits to the Board of Aldermen a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2) A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to this hearing,
the budget document is made available for public inspection.

3) Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

4) Any transfer of budgeted amounts between object levels within any fund or any
revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board
of Aldermen.

5) Budgets are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting which corresponds
to the fund statements. -

6) Actual expenditures may not legally exceed the budgeted expenditures in any
budgeted fund.
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MISSOURI LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuaticn
Date

2/29/2012
2/28/2013
2/28/2014

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

2/29/2012
2/28/2013
. 212912014

Note:

(a)
Actuarial
Vaiue
of Assets

$ 1,356,968
$ 1,556,954
$ 1,957,131

(a/b)
Funded
Ratio

84%
86%
94%

(b)
Entry Age
Actuarial
Accrued

Liability

$ 1,619,576
$ 1,808,822
$ 2,083,604

(c)
Annual
Covered
Payroll

$ 860,467
$ 1,053,519
$ 1,213,432

(b-a)
Unfunded
Accrued

Liability
(UAL)

$ 262,608
$ 251,868
$ 126,473

[(b-a)/c]
UAL as a
Percent of
Covered
Payroll

31%
24%
10%

The above assets and actuarial accrued liability do not include the assets and

present value of benefits associated with the Benefit Reserve Fund and the

Casualty Reserve Fund.

The actuarial assumptions were changed in
conjunction with the February 28, 2011, annual actuarial valuations.

For a

complete description of the actuarial assumptions used in the annual valuation,
please contact the LAGERS office in Jefferson City.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

BUDGETARY GOMPARISON SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS -
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Origingl Final Actual Posifive (Negative)
Beginning budgetary fund balance $ 419,763 $ 419,763 $ 419,763 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 771,287 771,287 770,312 {975)
Franchise fees 372,505 372,505 384,262 11,757
Licensss and permits 37,500 37,500 36,768 (732)
Intergovernmental 51,000 §1,000 45,459 (5,541)
Charges for sarvices 4,000 7,200 9,730 2,539
Fees and fines 278,000 276,000 256,436 (19,564)
Investment income 1,000 1,000 1,180 180
Other 50,000 75,700 181,578 105,878
Transfers from others funds 76,800 205,800 262,387 (32,813)
Proceeds from long-terrn debt - 117,000 116,571 (429
1,639,092 2,004,802 2,065,202 60,300
Amounts available for appropriation 2,058,855 2,424 785 2,485,055 60,300
Charges to appropriations (Qutflows):
Elected officials . 131,000 234,250 44,797 180,453
Administrative/finance 205,279 285,879 350,787 (54,908)
Law enforcement 1,967,114 785,404 808,128 {22,724)
Public works . 139,242 129,242 149,088 {19,844)
Streets - . - - .
Parks - - - -
Courts 93,832 95,132 88,588 8,546
Planning 118,089 180,089 163,659 16,430
Facilities 112,100 102,160 88,522 13,678
Emergency management
Capital outlay 2,200 1,600 71,622 {70,022
Debt service:. .. . .
Principal 52,300 169,300 128,706 40,594
Interest and fiscal charges - - 7,520 (7,520)
Transfers to other funds . 20,000 30,000 122,230 (92,230)
Total charges to appropriations 2,831,166 2,022,996 2,023,643 {847)
Ending budgetary fund balance . ] 872,301) & 401,758 ] 461,412 $ 508,653

See accompanying notes.
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Beginning budgetary fund balance '

Resources (Inflows);
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges for seivices
Investment income
Other

Amounts available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations {Cutflows):

Parks
Capital outiay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Transfers to ather funds

Total charges to appropriations

Ending budgetary fund balance

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

PARK FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - MODIFIED CASH BASIS --

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Ciriginal Final Aclual Positive (Negative)
3 290,850 § 200850 § 209850 § -
135,000 153,000 189,795 36,795
700 3,400 4,621 1,221
17,868 17,868 8,876 (8,992)
1,000 1,000 624 (378)
33,100 28,100 30,703 2,603
187,668 203368 __ 234819 _ 31251
487,518 503,218 534,469 31,251
168,008 195,189 191,004 4185
177,490 233,742 34,769 188,973
25,000 25,000 7,200 17,800
- - 17,330 (17,330)
2,000 2,500 4712 (2,212)
372,688 456,431 255,015 201,416
] 114,930 ] 48,787 3 279,454 3 232,667

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - MODIFIED GASH BASIS -
ROAD AND STREET FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Onginal Final Aclual Positive (Negative)
Beginning budgetary fund balance $ 93,054 $ 93054 § 93,054 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 136,350 136,350 190,105 53,755
Licenses and permits 600 600 - (600)
Intergovernmental 30,000 80,000 798,311 (689)
166.950 216,950 269,416 _ 52 466
Amounts available for appropriation 260,004 310,004 362,470 52 486
Charges to appropriations (Outfiows), .
Strests 166,950 286,450 237,755 48,695
Total charges to appropriations 166,950 288,450 237,755 48,695
Ending budgetary fund balance $ 93054 § 23554 § 124,715 $ 101,161

See accompanying notes.
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Beginning budgetary fund balance

Resources (Inflows),
Intergovernmental

Amounts available for appropriations

Charges to appropriations (Outflows),
Streets

Totat charges to appropriations

Ending budgetary fund balance

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOUR!

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE — MODIFIED CASH BASIS —

GASOLINE TAX FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget

Original Final Actual Positive (Negative)
$ 51,772 3 51,772 ] 3 51,772 $ -
162,625 162,625 172,741 10,116
214,397 214,397 224 513 10.118
162,625 162,625 153,362 9,263
162,625 162,625 153,362 9,263
$ 51772 % 51,772 & 71,151 $ 853

See accompanying notes.
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Beginning budgetary fund balance

Resources (Inflows),
Cther

Amounts available for appropriations

Charges to appropriations (Qutfiows),
Administrative/finance

Total charges to appropriations

Ending budgestary fund balance

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS --
LET FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Original Final Aclual Positive (Negati\re)
$ 1,710 $ 1,710 $ 1,710 $ -
4,000 4,000 1,908 (2,092)
5710 5710 3618 . (2,092)
4,000 4,000 2,666 1,334
4,000 4,000 2,666 1,334
$ 1,710 3 1,710 $ 952 $ (758)

See accompanying notes,
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Beginning budgetary fund balance

Resources (inflows),
Investment income

Amounts available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (Qutfiows):

Capital outlay
Debt service,
Principal

Total charges to appropriations

Ending budgetary fund balance

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS --

FBI FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Original Final Actual Positive (Negative)
$ 1,127,185 $ 1,127,185 $ 1,127,185 $ -
- - 394 394
- - 394 394
1,127,185 1,127,185 1,127.579 394
- 1,000,000 932,376 67,624
- - 111,000 {111,000}
- 1.000.000 1,043,376 (43,376}
3 1,127,185 $ 127,185 § 84,203 $ (42,982)

See acéompanying notes.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOUR!

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS --
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
: with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Original Final Actuat Paositive (Negative)
Beginning budgetary fund balance 3 245154 % 245,154 § 245,154 $ -
Resources (inflows):

Taxes 173,000 173,000 204,858 31,856
Intergovernmental 118,100 118,100 - (118,100)
Investment income 500 500 209 (291)
. Proceeds from long-lerm debt - 153,000 152,445 {555)
291,600 444 600 357,510 {87.080)

Amounts available for appropriations 536,754 B89.754

602 664 (87,090)

Charges to appropriations (Qutfiows);

Capﬁital outlay 317,000 612,600 309,477' 303,123
Debt service:
Principal - - 21,435 (21,435)
Interest and fiscal charges . - - 3,837 (3,837)
Total charges to appropriations . 317,000 612,600 334,749 277,851
Ending budgetary fund balance $ 219754 § 77,154 % 287915 § 190,761

See accompanying notes.
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Beginning budgetary fund balance
Resources (Inflows);

Licenses and permits
Invastment income

Amounts available for appropriations

Charges to appropriations (Outflows),
Capital ouflay

Total charges fo appropriations

Ending budgetary fund balance

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSQURI

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BAS(S ~

EAST GROWTH FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget

Original Final Actual Positive (Negative!
$ 2997 % 2,997 2,997 $ -
- 3,000 5,000 2,000
. - 5 5
- 3,000 5,005 2.005
29097 5,897 8,002 2.005
- 3.000 2.900 100
- 3,000 2,900 100
$ 2,997 $ 2,997 5,102 $ 2,105

See accompanying notes.
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Beginning budgetary fund balance
Resources (Inflows):

Licenses and permits
Investment income

Amounts available for appropriations

Charges to appropriations (Qutfiows),
Capital oullay

Total charges to appropriations

Ending budgetary fund balance

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE — MODIFIED CASH BASIS --

WEST GROWTH FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounis Budget
Criginal Final Actual Positive (Negative)
$ 10,746 $ 10746 § 10,746 $ -
5,000 6,000 1,000
10 15 5
5,010 6.015 1,005
10,748 15,756 16,761 1,005
15,000 13,00 2,000
e —" ),
15,000 13,000 2,000
$ 10,746 $ 756 § 3,761 3 3,005

See accompanying notes.
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Beginning budgetary fund balance

Resources (Inflows):
Investment income

Amounts available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (Outfiows),
Capital cutlay

Total charges to appropriations

Ending budgetary fund balance

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOUR!

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS --

2012 COP CONSTRUCTION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Originai Finai Actual Positive (Negative)
$ (16,921) § (16,921) § (16,921) % -
1,000 1,000 - {1,000)
1,000 1,000 - {1,000y
(15.921) (15,921) (‘16.9211 (1,000)
1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
1,000 1,000 - 1,000
$ {16,921) % {16,921) § (16,921) 3 -

See accompanying notes,
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS --
2013 BOND CONSTRUCTION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounis Budget
_ Original Final Actual Positive (Negative)
Beginning budgetary fund balance $ 334750 § 334,750 $ 334,750 $ -
Resources (Inflows),
Investment income - - 89 89
Amounts available for appropriation 334,750 334,750 334,839 89
Charges to appropriations {Qutflows);
Capital ouflay - 238,750 247 000 {10,250y
Transfers out - 98,000 97 476 524
Total charges to appropriations - 334,750 344 476 (9,726)
Ending budgetary fund balance $ 334750 3 - 8 (9637) $ {9,637)
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Beginning budgetary fund balance

Resources (Inflows),
Taxes

Armiounts available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (Outflows):

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Transfers to other funds

Total charges to appropriations

Ending budgetary fund halance

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI -

DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE — MODIFIED CASH BASIS --

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Original Finat Actual Puositive {Negative)
$ 158236 § 158,236 § 158,236 $ .
237,000 237,000 236,558 (442)
— 237000 ___ 237,000 236,558 {442)
395,236 395,236 394,794 (442)
130,000 . 80,000 25,000 55,000
108,514 72,000 55,450 16,550
- 108,800 107,769 1,031
236,514 260,800 188,219 72,561
3 1 58.72 $ 134,436 $ 206,575 3 72,139

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSCURI

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS --

2012 DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance
with Fina!
Budgeted Amounts ’ Budget
Original Final Actual Positive gNegativel
Beginning budgetary fund balance 3 54866 % 54,866 § ' 54,866 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Investment income - - 137 137
Transfers from other funds 48,000 48,000 37,063 {10,937
48,000 48,000 37,200 (10,800}
Amounts available for appropriation 102,866 102,866 02 066 {10.800)
Charges to appropriations (Outflows):
Debt service:
Principal 25,000 25,000 13,500 © 11,500
Inierest and fiscal charges ' 23,000 23,000 12,261 10,739
Transfers to other funds - - 11,467 {11,467)
Total charges to appropriations 48,000 48,000 37,228 10,772
Ending budgetary fund balance $ 54866 § 54866 § 54838 § (28)

Sees accompanying notes.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS --

CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI.

BUILDING FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Administrative Public Works

Beginning budgetary fund balance $ - -
Revenues $ - _
Expenditures:

Supplies 3,944 36

Maintenance 12,893 3,154

Utilities 12,392 6,817

Insurance 2,840 2,326 -

Capital outlay - -

Total expenditures 32,089 12,333

Other Financing Sources,

Transfersin ' 32,068 12,281
Net change in fund balance 1 52
Ending budgetary fund balance $ 1 52

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS -

HISTORY AND OPERATION OF THE WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Customer and Operatlons

Nao. Customers

Year - Water Sewer
2009 1770 1962
2010 1797 1964
2011 1799 1967
2012 1800 1968
2013 1725 1978
2014 1631 1889
Top Water Customers
Percentage of
User Usage in Gallons Total
Pilot/Flying J 7,532,600 8%
Peculiar Senior Citizen Housing 1,128,700 1%
Aarons Auto Wash 979,100 - 1%
Ray-Pec Shull Elementary 286,100 0.30%
Peculiar Elementary 745,979 0.83%

Top Sewer Customers

Percentage of

User Usage in Gallons Total
Pilot/Flying J 7,532,800 45%
Sioux Chief MFG 1,673,400 10%
Peculiar Senior Citizen Housing 1,128,700 6%
Ray-Pec High School 1,204,200 9%
Aarons Auto Wash 978,100 5%
System Revenue History
Waterworks Sewerage
Collections Collections
2008 $685,600 $553,306
2009 $713,690 $732,717
2010 $811,788 $913,823
2011 $820,152 $1,044,918
2012 $859,653 $1,204,613
2013 $924,002 $1,183,042
2014 $1,214,770 $1,177.758
Current System Rates
Per 1,000 Gallons
Water Sewer
Within City Limits First 1,000 $ 1721 § 15.00
Over 1,000 $ 1277 § £6.85
Outside City Limits First 1,000 $ 1995 § 50.00
Over 1,000 $ 13.77 $ 9.35
Business-Government  First 1,000 $ - $ 20.00
Over1,000 - % - $ 8.35
PWSD#2/10 First 1,000 $ - $ 15.00
Over 1,000 $ - 3 16.85
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CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE -- MODIFIED CASH BASIS «-
HISTORY AND OPERATION OF THE WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Historical Debt Service Coverage
System Revenue
Water
Sewer
fnvestment Income
Other Income
Total Revenue
Operating Expenses (excluding depreciation)
Total Water/Sewer Expenses '
Net Revenues available for Debt Service

Annual Debt Service on Revenue Bonds

Debt Service Coverage

Surplus

2011 2012 2013

$ 820,152 § 850,653 § 924,002 $

1,044,918 1,204,613 1,183,042
120,868 112,296 92,393
20,462 21,037 22,514

2014

1,214,770
1,177,758
76,916
51,740

2,008400 2 197,599 2,221,951

2,521,184

1385439 1,350,198 1,546,260

1,562,359

620,961 847,401 675,691
$ 365213 $ 505226 $ 594,844 §

1,70 1.42 1.14

958,825
601,328

1.59

$ 255748 $ 252175 § 80,847 §$

357,499
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RESOLUTION 2015-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI
TO RECEIVE AND ACCEPT THE AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014, WHICH ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
PECULIAR, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. RESOLVED, that the City of Peculiar is required to have an annual audit
completed at the end of each fiscal year; and

Section 2. RESOLVED, that the Board of Aldermen retained the services of Troutt,
Beeman, & Co., PC, to prepare the audit for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 for the City of Peculiar;
and

Section 3. RESOLVED, that the Board of Aldermen have reviewed the audit and found it in
compliance with regulatory requirements and that it accurately reflects the City’s fiscal

performance for the FY 2013-2014.

Section 4. RESOLVED, the effective date of this Resolution shall be the __ day of January,
2015.

Upon aroll call, said Resolution was adopted by the following vote:

Alderman Ford _ Alderman McCrea _
Alderman Fines - Alderman Turner -
Alderman Ray - Alderman Roberts -
Approved: Attest:

Holly Stark, Mayor Janet Burlingame, City Clerk
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City Administrator Chief of Police

Brad Ratliff Harry Gurin

City Clerk City Planner

Janet Burlingame Cliff McDonald

A

City Engineer Lst. 1868 City Attorne

Crgl Brgoks MISSO“‘B‘ Retist,i HoIbrooi

Business Office Municipal Offices - 250 S. Main Street, Peculiar, MO 64078 Parks Director

Trudy Prickett Phone: (816)779-5212 Facsimile: (816)779-1004 Nathan Musteen

To: Mayor & Board of Aldermen

From: Carl Brooks, City Engineer (cbrooks@cityofpeculiar.com)

Date: January 27, 2015

Re: Ordinance, proposed changes and procedures to Section 700 Utility Service

GENERAL INFORMATION

Applicant: City Staff

Requested Actions: Passage of an ordinance amending Peculiar Municipal Code Section 700

Property Location: City Wide

Purpose: 1) Establish a number of miscellaneous guidelines regarding utility service as part of an
ordinance.

PROPOSAL

City staff proposes passage of an ordinance amending the Peculiar Municipal Code Section 700 establishing a number
of miscellaneous guidelines including, but not limited to, the following in no particular order:

1) Utility Bill Extensions

2) Property Owner’s for Rental, Business, Commercial Units:
3) Property Owner’s Rental Units with Balance Due

4) Nonrefundable Administrative Fee

5) Real Estate Home Inspection Fee

6) Service Availability

7) Fire Hydrant Meters

8) Late Fees (reduce from 15% to 10% )

PREVIOUS ACTIONS
First reading was approved at the January 20", 2015 BOA Meeting.
KEY ISSUES

Currently, the City does not have in Section 700 Utility Service a number of items that can be easy handled by
City staff rather than taking to the Mayor for approval.

STAFF COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS
City staff has begun reviewing the City’s Section 700 Utility Service
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We attempt to be a leader in the area of utility service and stay ahead of change.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION

City staff’s recommendation would be the inclusion of miscellaneous guidelines as discussed above regarding utility

service and as directed by the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen of an ordinance amending the Peculiar Municipal
Code Section 700.

ATTACHMENTS

Bill No. 2015-02
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BILL NO. 2015-02
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI AMENDING SEVERAL
SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 700, REPEALING SECTION 710.040 OF PECULIAR
MUNICIPAL CODE AND ESTABLISHING SECTIONS 700.015 AND 700.035 OF
PECULIAR MUNIPAL CODE.

WHEREAS, the City is authorized, under Rev. Stat. Mo. 8§88 91.010 and 91.090 to erect,
maintain, and operate water works;

WHEREAS, the City is further authorized, pursuant to Rev. Stat. Mo. 88 79.130 and
79.450, to enact ordinances, rules, and regulations "expedient for maintaining the peace, good
government and welfare of the city and its trade and commerce;" and

WHEREAS, this proposed ordinance will maintain the good government and
commercial welfare of the City of Peculiar; and shall ensure that the City's water works system
continues to serve the needs of the Peculiar citizenry.

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Peculiar, Missouri
as follows:

SECTION I. That Peculiar Municipal Code § 700.010 be repealed in its entirety and replaced as
follows:

Utility Service — Cash Deposit and Connection Fees.

A A cash deposit shall be required for all permanent or temporary utility service
connections as security for payment of bills per the following schedule:

1. A deposit of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) for owner dwellings
seeking water and sewer service shall be paid prior to service inception.

2. A deposit of two hundred dollars ($200.00) for rental dwellings seeking water and
sewer service shall be paid prior to service inception.

3. A deposit of three hundred dollars ($300.00) for commercial businesses seeking
water and sewer service shall be paid prior to service inception.

4, A deposit of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for dwellings or commercial
businesses seeking only sewer shall be paid prior to service inception.

B. Security deposits shall be applied to cover any unpaid utility bill immediately following
the termination of service.

C. If a cash deposit is utilized by the City to cover any portion of an unpaid amount, service
will not be reconnected for the applicant until the requisite security deposit is again
provided to the City.

D. A deposit of five hundred dollars ($500.00) is required for all fire hydrant meters and
such meters shall be billed monthly. A fire hydrant meter shall be subject to the
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established business water rates as well as all applicable fees for service. The renter of a
fire hydrant meter shall be held liable for any and all damages to the meter as well as for
any and all registered and unregistered water loss.

The fees for water and sewer connections shall be as follows:

1.

Residential water connection. A residential water connection shall be any
connection to the City of Peculiar water system that is no larger than three-quarter
(%4) inches. The fee for this connection shall be one thousand six hundred dollars
($1,600.00).

Commercial water connection. A commercial water connection shall be any
connection to the City of Peculiar water system that is one (1) inch or larger. The
fee for this connection shall be determined based on necessary product cost but, in
any case, shall not be less than one thousand nine hundred dollars ($1,900.00).

Irrigation water meter connection. An irrigation water meter connection shall be
any connection to the City of Peculiar water system that is solely used for
irrigation purposes, and in accordance with a written agreement with the City of
Peculiar. The connection shall be no larger than three-quarter (3/4) inches, unless
approved by the City Engineer. The fee for this connection shall be at least one
thousand dollars ($1,000.00), or as established by the approved Schedule of Fees.
The fee for larger connections shall be established by the approved Schedule of
Fees. Such connections shall solely be available to property owners and/or
homeowners' associations.

Residential sewer connection. A residential sewer connection shall be any
connection to the City of Peculiar sanitary sewer system for single-family
residential use, including single lots zoned "R1", "R2", "RE", and single-family
residences in "A™" and "C". The fee for this connection shall be two thousand one
hundred dollars ($2,100.00).

Commercial sewer connection. A commercial sewer connection shall be any
connection to the City of Peculiar sanitary sewer system for commercial uses,
including multi-family residences and areas zoned "R3", "R4", "O-C", "C1",
"C2", and "C-P". The fee for this connection shall be two thousand six hundred
twenty-five dollars ($2,625.00) plus a trap fee of fifty dollars ($50.00) per trap.
The trap fee is to be paid at the time of building permit issuance.

Industrial sewer connection. An industrial sewer connection shall be any
connection to the City of Peculiar sanitary sewer system for industrial uses and
shall include connections in areas zoned "I-1" and "1-2". The fee for this
connection shall be three thousand dollars ($3,000.00).

Residential and commercial sewer connections outside City limits. Connections
under this Subsection shall include any connection, whether utilized for
residential or commercial use, to the City of Peculiar sanitary sewer system when
the subject property lies outside the current City limits at the time of application.
The fee for this connection shall be three thousand dollars ($3,000.00).
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SECTION II. That Peculiar Municipal Code 8§ 700.015 be established to read as follows:

General Permits, Fees and Other Services

A.

Meter Availability Fee

1.

There is hereby established a “meter availability fee”. This fee is to cover the
principal and interest amounts for the City’s current bonded indebtedness for
Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds.

Meter Availability fee charges are for a residential/commercial/industrial service
user and/or property owner that will not be using water or wastewater service for
6 months or longer.

The meter availability fee charged and collected by the City of Peculiar,
Missouri, for water and/or wastewater service(s) furnished by the waterworks
and/or wastewater system(s) of the City of Peculiar, Missouri or by contracted
entities for water and/or wastewater service(s), shall be approved by the Board of
Aldermen by Resolution, and adjusted as necessary through budget amendments.

Real Estate Home Inspection Fee

1.

A temporary activation of service per individual living unit for the purpose of a
third party inspection of the exterior and interior water and sanitary sewer service
lines for a period not to exceed 24 hours. The permit shall be issued and carried
out by the designated Building Official of the City of Peculiar. The initial fee for
said permit shall be fifty (50) dollars and shall be included in the adopted “fee
schedule”.

The permit fee shall be amended as needed at the discretion of the City
Administrator.

Outside Meter Testing

1.

The removal of the water meters for outside meter testing and inspection may be
requested by the service user and/or property owner served by the meter.

All requests by a service user and/or property owner for outside meter testing
must be made to the Waterworks Manager.

Outside meter testing shall be performed by a third party testing facility.

All outside residential meter testing shall be subject to a fifteen ($15) dollar non-
refundable Administrative Fee.

Fees for testing:

Residential Meter 5/8 inch by 3/4 inch $35.00
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Commercial Meter or Meter linch and larger Cost determined by
City Engineer.

If a meter so removed by the service user and/or property owner’s order is found
by tests to be in error by less than two percent the cost of such removal, tests and
replacement shall be borne by the service user and/or property owner.

If a meter so removed by the service user and/or property owner’s order is found
by tests to be in error by more than two percent the cost of such removal, tests and
replacement shall be borne by the City. An account adjustment will be made to
compensate for the inaccurate meter. At no point will an adjustment exceed the
previous two (2) billing periods.

2. Definitions

“Qutside meter testing” as used in this section shall mean any testing performed at
a location outside of the City of Peculiar and performed by a third party.

SECTION I1l. That Peculiar Municipal Code § 700.030 be repealed in its entirety and replaced
as follows:

Delinquent Payment — Notice — Disconnection For Non-Payment — Reconnection Fees and
Deposit.

A

Payments for utility services are due on/or before the fifteenth (15th) day of each month.
Bills not paid in full by the fifteenth (15th) of every month shall be considered
delinquent. If the fifteenth (15th) falls on a Saturday, Sunday or recognized City holiday,
payment must be received in our office before 9:00 A.M. the following business day to
avoid any penalties.

Utility services will be terminated if payments are not made in full prior to the twenty-
third (23rd) day of the month. If the regular disconnection day should fall on Friday,
Saturday, Sunday or a City recognized holiday, said utility service shall be disconnected
on the following business day.

The City will not authorize an extension for paying a utility bill. Staff will give a list of
known organizations to the service user and/or property owner that has helped service
user and/or property owner’s pay utility bills in the past.

When an account becomes delinquent, the City shall notify, by regular mail at the last
known address, the owner of the property and the occupant of the property receiving
services, of the delinquency and the amount thereof, including penalties. Said notices
shall also inform the property owner, and the occupant, if applicable, of the potential for
the termination of utility services in accordance with these ordinances.

A service user and/or property owner who has never been disconnected, may receive a
notification of termination of service in the form of a door hanger. The door hanger will
state the date and time the service will be disconnected as well as a timeframe
outstanding balances must be paid to avoid termination of service.

73



F. For accounts that are disconnected for non-payment, services will not be fully restored
until payment in full has been received, along with an administrative fee of fifty dollars
($50.00). The administrative fee shall be assessed and paid regardless of the status of any
actual disconnection of service. Following payment in full, utility service will be restored
as soon as possible and no later than 5:00 P.M. the day it is paid. No service will be
restored during non-business hours. The administrative fee shall be added as a secondary
“non-refundable” deposit up to a maximum as determined by the City Administrator.

1. The non-refundable deposit accumulated by administrative fees will be
immediately applied to cover any outstanding balances in excess of the service
user and/or property’s owner original deposit. Any balance of the non-refundable
deposit remaining shall be returned to the Water Enterprise Revenue Account.

G. The administrative fee is fifty dollars ($50.00) unless the account has been delinquent
more than three (3) times within a twelve (12) month period. At that time the
administrative fee shall be one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00). In an emergency situation
after hours, with consent of the Mayor or City Administrator for reconnection, the
administrative fee will be one hundred dollars ($100.00) along with the account balance
paid in full. Payment must be made in full plus the administrative fee no later than 9:00
a.m. the following business day in person. City staff will not accept any payments in the
field.

H. The City Administrator has the authority to waive the administrative fee one (1) time per
account per calendar year.

I If a builder owes on a delinquent account, no new account at a different address or any
additional building permits will be issued until the delinquent accounts are paid in full.

J. If an account is delinquent in payment, a ten percent (10%) penalty shall be added to the
delinquent bill on the sixteenth (16th) day of each month.

SECTION 1V. That Peculiar Municipal Code § 710.040 be repealed in its entirety and Peculiar
Municipal Code 8 700.035 be established to read as follows:

Liability of Service User and/or Property Owner.

A. A service user and/or property owner shall be jointly and severally liable to pay for the
services rendered on their premises. As used in this Chapter, "services rendered™ is
defined as the utility service provided by the City of Peculiar in the form of metering and
billing for water services and/or sewer services; as well as the utility service provided by
the current contracted refuse disposal company in the form of weekly solid waste pickup.
The City shall have the power to sue the service user and/or property owner in a civil
action to receive any delinquent sums due for such services rendered, as well as
administrative fees, late fees, and reasonable attorney fees; and/or to place a lien on the
property. The service user and/or property owner shall not be liable for more than ninety
(90) days of service.

B. If a service user subject to a lease agreement vacates the premises, utility service for the
new occupant (new service user) will not be started until all amounts due and owing on
the property have been paid in full. In no case will the new service user be liable for more
than ninety (90) days of service.
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C. In the event a service user becomes chronically delinquent leaving unpaid utility bills, the
City may decide to pursue other options along with RSMO 250.140 or pursuant
following.

If the City is required to submit unpaid bills to the property owner more than two (2)
times in one (1) calendar year, then the property owner may be required to put the service
in his/her name. This will include a deposit. After one (1) calendar year, the property
owner may request a review by the City to consider allowing the utility service to be put
back in a service user’s name.

If the City is required to submit unpaid bills to the property owner for more than 1/3 of a
single complex unit more than two (2) times in one calendar year, then the City may
require the property owner to put the total complex utility services in his/her name. This
will include deposits for each unit in the complex. After one (1) calendar year, the
property owner may request a review by the City to consider allowing the utility service
to be put back in a service user’s name.

If the property owner has multiple complex rental units and there are consistent unpaid
problems, then the City may require all of his/her rental property to be put in the property
owner’s name. The property owner will be required to pay individual deposits for
individual units and be billed for the individual units. After one (1) calendar year the
property owner may request a review by the City to consider allowing the utility service
to be put back in a service user’s name.

SECTION V: The effective date of this ordinance shall be

First Reading: January 20, 2015 Second Reading:

BE IT REMEMBERED THE PRECEDING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED ON ITS

SECOND READING THIS __ DAY OF , 2015, BY THE FOLLOWING
VOTE:

Alderman Ford Alderman McCrea

Alderman Fines Alderman Turner

Alderman Ray Alderman Roberts

Approved: Attest:

Holly Stark, Mayor Janet Burlingame, City Clerk
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City Administrator Chief of Police

Brad Ratliff Harry Gurin

City Clerk City Planner

Janet Burlingame Cliff McDonald
=\

City Engineer Lst. 1868 City Attorney

Carl Brooks MISSO“““ Reid Holbrook

Business Office Municipal Offices - 250 S. Main Street, Peculiar, MO 64078 Parks Director

Trudy Prickett Phone: (816)779-5212 Facsimile: (816)779-1004 Nathan Musteen

To: Board of Aldermen

From: Clifford L. McDonald

Date: February 2, 2015

Re: Presentation of the Ordinance of Annexation for Involuntary Annexation of Two (2) Tracts of

Property Adjacent to Existing City of Peculiar City Limits; Second of Three Readings.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Applicant:  BOA

Status of Applicant: N/A

Requested Actions: Board of Aldermen to Consider Ordinance of Annexation for Approval.
Date of Application: January 5, 2015

Purpose: To Annex Adjacent and “Island” Properties which have City Services and Utilities
Readily Available Into the City Limits of the City of Peculiar In Accordance With the
City’s 3, 8 and 13 Year Annexation Plan.

Property Location (if applicable): Two (2) Tracts of Land Proposed for Annexation

PROPOSAL

Presentation to the BOA of the Ordinance which shall approve the Annexation of Two (2) Tracts of Land
adjacent to the City of Peculiar’s City Limits subject to approval by Peculiar’s Citizens on the April 7", 2015
Election and the subsequent renduring of a Declatory Judgement by the Circuit Court of Cass County approving
the Annexation.

PREVIOUS ACTIONS

At the January 5", 2015 BOA Meeting the Board approved Resolution 2015-01 declaring the City’s Intent to
Annex these properties and Resolution 2015-02 calling for an Annexation Election to be held April 7", 2015.
The Board approved the First Reading of this Annexation Ordinance at their January 20", 2015 meeting.

KEY ISSUES

It is the belief of City Staff that one of the keys to Peculiar’s growth will be land use decisions that are designed to
not only make the City an attractive place to live, but also to engage in business. It is important that the City be able to
control growth in an orderly and desirable manner both for the impact upon the City’s infrastructure and our residents.

Effectively the only method the City can employ to control growth is to bring lands, not currently in the City, within
Peculiar’s City Limits and therefore subject such lands to the City’s zoning and land use regulations as established by
ordinance. To accomplish this, City staff is requesting the Board of Aldermen to review the Ordinance of Annexation
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designed to annex two (2) tracts of property In-accordance-with the City’s 3, 8 & 13 Year Annexation Plan.  The
Board of Aldermen are being presented the Ordinance to Approve the Annexation, second of three (3) readings, for your
review and consideration.

STAFF COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS

City Staff is working closely with our City Attorney to ensure all required steps will be addressed and
completed on-time. The Annexation Process Timeline details all the required steps and deadlines for this
annexation action and is attached for your information (see Attach 1).

At the next Board of Aldermen meeting scheduled for February 17", 2015 a Public Hearing will be held at
which the City’s Plan of Intent for the annexation will be presented. The Plan of Intent is attached for your
informational review (see Attach 2).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Board of Aldermen to consider approving the Proposed Ordinance of Annexation as presented for its
Second (of Three Readings) on February 2nd, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
(1) Annexation Process Timeline
(2) Plan of Intent
(3) Ordinance of Annexation

STAFF CONTACT: Clifford McDonald
Phone: 779-2226
E-mail: cmcdonald@cityofpeculiar.com
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ANNEXATION PROCESS
TIMELINE
February 2", 2015

° Jan 5™ - City Staff send Certified Mail Notice to Property Owners on proposed Annexation

and scheduled Public Hearing. COMPLETE
. Jan 5™ — Resolutions stating the City’s Intent to Annex and calling for an Election for

Annexation presented to BOA. COMPLETE
° Jan 5" — Introduction of Involuntary Annexation Ordinance at BOA Work Session. COMPLETE
. Jan 20" - First Reading, Involuntary Annexation Ordinance by BOA (Deadline) COMPLETE
. Jan 22" — Notice of Public Hearing sent to The Journal to publish for three (3) weeks. COMPLETE
° Jan 27" - Ballot Submission/Certification to Cass County for April Ballot (Deadline) COMPLETE
° Jan 29" — Public Hearing Notice, BOA Meeting of February 17", published (Deadline) COMPLETE
. Jan 29" — Public Hearing Notice, BOA Meeting of February 17", posted @ City Hall

(Deadline) COMPLETE
° Jan 29" — Public Hearing Notice, BOA Meeting of February 17", placards posted

@ property to be annexed (Deadline) COMPLETE
. Jan 29" - Draft “Plan of Intent” (Annexation) ready for review COMPLETE
° Feb 2" — Second Reading, Involuntary Annexation Ordinance by BOA  (Deadline) SCHEDULED
. Feb 2" — Draft “Plan of Intent” (Annexation) presented to BOA for review COMPLETE
. Feb 17" — Public Hearing, BOA, on Annexation & presentation of the “Plan of Intent”.

SCHEDULED
After the hearing, potential 3" Reading and passage of the Annexation Ordinance.

. April 7th - Elections
STAFF CONTACT:

Clifford L. McDonald
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City of Peculiar
Plan of Intent
(Annexation)

February 17", 2015
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PLAN OF INTENT

PLAN OF INTENT TO PROVIDE MUNICIPAL SERVICES TO
TWO (2) TRACTS OF PROPERTY UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR
ANNEXATION LOCATED IN SECTIONS 9, AND 17, OF TOWNSHIP 45
NORTH, RANGE 32 WEST IN CASS COUNTY, ADJACENT TO CITY OF
PECULIAR’S CORPORATE CITY LIMITS

The Board of Aldermen of the City of Peculiar, Missouri, have expressed intent to annex the two
(2) Tracts of property generally described above and further defined in AN ORDINANCE OF
THE CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI PROVIDING FOR THE EXTENSION OF THE CITY
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR; BILL NO. 2015-03.

These areas have been previously identified for the City’s future expansion and economic
development as supported by the City of Peculiar’s 2008 Comprehensive Plan, and the City of
Peculiar 3, 8 & 13 Year Annexation Plan adopted October 21, 2013. Missouri law requires that
prior to annexation, a report be prepared and presented at a public hearing setting forth the plans
of the municipality to provide major municipal services.

The following information has been compiled by the principal departments of the City of
Peculiar, Missouri that would be responsible for providing services to the newly annexed areas.
The services presently provided by the City and a list of services available to the residents or
property owners upon annexation are summarized for each Tract (by paragraph) in this Plan of
Intent.

Contents
Tract 1 Page 3 -7
Tract 2 Page 8 -11

TRACT 1 -21604 S. School Road, legally described in Bill No. 2015-03
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This area proposed for annexation is an unincorporated island property of 12.55 acres, bordered
one hundred Percent (100%) by the City of Peculiar’s Corporate City Limits
(see Map #1, page 3). This property was identified for future development in the City of
Peculiar’s Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 2008 (specifically the Future Land Use Plan). The
annexation of this property was identified in the City of Peculiar 3, 8 & 13 Year Annexation Plan
adopted October 21, 2013 (see Map #2, page 4). This property was prioritized for annexation
due to planned Destination Retail development of the Southeast 1-49 & East 211™ Street
Intersection as identified in the City’s Future Land Use Plan.

The services presently provided by the City and a list of services available to the residents or
property owners upon annexation are summarized for TRACT 1 in paragraphs “a thru j” as
follows:

MAP #1 TRACT 1

MAP#2  TRACT1  (City of Peculiar 3, 8 & 13 Year Annexation Plan, Item #3)
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a. Proposed Street Improvements. TRACT 1 is presently served by School Road on the
Eastern border; no additional street improvements are planned or necessary.

b. Water Service. TRACT 1 has City Water Service readily available from a four (4) inch
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water line adjacent to School Road (see Map #3, page 5).

MAP #3 TRACT 1 (TRACT 1 Water Service, City 4 inch line)
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c. Sanitary Sewer Service. TRACT 1 has Sanitary Sewer Service available from a City
Sanitary Sewer Main which lies within One Hundred (100) feet immediately Northeast of

its property line (see Map #4, page 6 ).
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MAP #4 TRACT 1  (TRACT 1 Sanitary Sewer Service)

‘Tract 1 Sanitary Sewer |

d. Fire Protection. TRACT 1 is presently within, and served by, the West Peculiar Fire
Protection District (WPFPD). The City of Peculiar does not operate its own Fire
Department. It continues to be more cost effective for the citizens of Peculiar to have the
West Peculiar Fire Protection District provide the service. The Fire Protection Rating for
the proposed annexation area is 4. The WPFPD is able to respond to a call with 4 — 6
personnel and 4,600 gallons of water for initial response.

e. Police Protection. TRACT 1 is presently served by the Cass County Sheriff’s Department.
Upon annexation, police protection would be provided by the City of Peculiar Police
Department. There would be no additional cost of providing Police Protection to this property.

f. Parks and Recreation. TRACT 1 is presently served by the City of Peculiar Department
of Parks & Recreation. The City provides 7 public parks and over 170 acres of park land
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that any residents of the proposed annexation area would have full access too. Upon
annexation, any non-resident fees for programs or shelter rentals would no longer apply
as this proposed area would fall under the “resident” fee structure.

g. Other Municipal Services

Street Lighting: The City manages the street lighting throughout the City through a lease
agreement with KCP&L. Presently street lighting is provided on School Road near
intersections, no additional street lights are planned at this time.

Code Enforcement: The City codes for building, plumbing, electrical, housing, safety,
nuisance abatement and development are administered by the City; the Fire Code is
administered by West Peculiar Fire Protection District. Commercial building plans are
reviewed by the City Planner and City Engineer. Upon annexation, the applicable
building and zoning codes will be administered uniformly throughout the annexed area.

Refuse (Trash) Collection: The City provides refuse collection to City residents. The
service is contracted by the City with a private company, the service includes bulky waste
pick-up. Upon annexation, refuse collection would be available to any residential
customer in TRACT 1; this would not include dumpster service for businesses.

h. Taxation. According to state law, the city may not assess any property at any higher level
for city assessment purposes than it is assessed by the County Assessor.
The present City of Peculiar Tax Rate is $0.8626 per $100 assessed valuation.

i. Existing Land Use and Proposed Zoning. In accordance with the City of Peculiar
Municipal Code, SECTION 400.310, ZONING UPON ANNEXATION. Whenever any
land shall be annexed to the Municipality, the Zoning designation of such land shall, at
the discretion of the City Planner, be changed to “AG” Agriculture or to the Municipal
Zoning designation that most closely resembles the “Existing Use” of the property.

The Proposed Zoning for TRACT 1 based upon the Existing Land Use of the property, its
size of 12.55 acres and the current Cass County Assessor’s classification of the property
is R-1, Single Family Dwelling District.

j. Effective Date. The Effective Date of the Annexation shall be the Day/Date immediately
following the election approving the annexation (authorized by Rev. Stat. Mo. § 71.015)
or upon the receipt of a Final Order from a Court of competent jurisdiction, whichever is
later.

TRACT 2 -9707 E. State Route YY, legally described in Bill No. 2015-03

This area proposed for annexation is an unincorporated property of 2.72 acres, which has a
contiguous border of Sixty Seven Percent (67%) with the City of Peculiar’s Corporate City
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Limits (see Map #5, page 8). TRACT 2 is developed with an electrical substation and prioritized
for annexation as it is adjacent to a residential subdivision. Additionally, two very similar
facilities already lie within Peculiar’s Corporate City Limits:
e The South Harper Peaking Facility (electrical generating facility) at 24404 S. Harper
Road, and
e The Peculiar 345 kV Substation (located at East 203" Street and South Knight Road)

The services presently provided by the City and a list of services available to the residents or
property owners upon annexation are summarized for TRACT 2 in paragraphs “a thru j” as
follows:

MAP #5 TRACT 2

a. Proposed Street Improvements. TRACT 2 is presently served by State Route Y'Y on the
Northern border, maintained by MoDOT; no additional improvements are necessary.

b. Water Service. TRACT 2 would have Water Service provided by Public Water Supply

District No. 7.
c. Sanitary Sewer Service. TRACT 2 would have Sanitary Sewer Service available from a
City Sanitary Sewer Main adjacent to Crystal Avenue (see Map #6, page 9) if required.
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MAP #6

TRACT 2

(Sanitary Sewer Main. Lateral B Availability)
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d. Fire Protection. TRACT 2 is presently within, and served by, the West Peculiar Fire

Protection District (WPFPD). The City of Peculiar does not operate its own Fire
Department. It continues to be more cost effective for the citizens of Peculiar to have the
West Peculiar Fire Protection District provide the service. The Fire Protection Rating for

the proposed annexation area is 4. The WPFPD is able to respond to a call with



4 — 6 personnel and 4,600 gallons of water for initial response.

Police Protection. TRACT 2 is presently served by the Cass County Sheriff’s Department.
Upon annexation, police protection would be provided by the City of Peculiar Police
Department. There would be no additional cost of providing Police Protection to this property.

Parks and Recreation. TRACT 2 is presently served by the City of Peculiar Department
of Parks & Recreation. The City provides 7 public parks and over 170 acres of park land
that any resident of the proposed annexation area would have full access too. Upon
annexation, any non-resident fees for programs or shelter rentals would no longer apply
as this proposed area would fall under the “resident” fee structure.

Other Municipal Services

Street Lighting: The City manages the street lighting throughout the City through a lease
agreement with KCP&L. Presently street lighting is provided on State Route Y'Y near
intersections, no additional street lights are planned at this time.

Code Enforcement: The City codes for building, plumbing, electrical, housing, safety,
nuisance abatement and development are administered by the City; the Fire Code is
administered by West Peculiar Fire Protection District. Commercial building plans are
reviewed by the City Planner and City Engineer. Upon annexation, the applicable
building and zoning codes will be administered uniformly throughout the annexed area.

Refuse (Trash) Collection: The City provides refuse collection to City residents. The
service is contracted by the City with a private company, the service includes bulky waste
pick-up. Upon annexation, refuse collection would be available to any residential
customer in TRACT 2; this would not include dumpster service for businesses.

. Taxation. According to state law, the city may not assess any property at any higher level
for city assessment purposes than it is assessed by the County Assessor.
The present City of Peculiar Tax Rate is $0.8626 per $100 assessed valuation.

Existing Land Use and Proposed Zoning. In accordance with the City of Peculiar
Municipal Code, SECTION 400.310, ZONING UPON ANNEXATION. Whenever any
land shall be annexed to the Municipality, the Zoning designation of such land shall, at
the discretion of the City Planner, be changed to “AG” Agriculture or to the Municipal
Zoning designation that most closely resembles the “Existing Use” of the property.

The Proposed Zoning for TRACT 2 based upon its size of 2.72 acres and the current Cass
County Assessor’s classification of the property is R-1, Single Family Dwelling District.

Effective Date. The Effective Date of the Annexation shall be the Day/Date immediately
following the election approving the annexation (authorized by Rev. Stat. Mo. § 71.015)

or upon the receipt of a Final Order from a Court of competent jurisdiction, whichever is
later.
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BILL NO. 2015-03
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI PROVIDING FOR THE
EXTENSION OF THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI BY
EMBRACING AND INCLUDING UNINCORPORATED REAL PROPERTY LOCATED
IN SECTIONS 9, AND 17 OF TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 32 WEST IN CASS
COUNTY, MISSOURI AND HEREINAFTER PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED.

WHEREAS, on the 5™ day of January, 2015, the City of Peculiar, Missouri declared by
resolution of the Board of Aldermen its intent to annex the following unincorporated areas into
the City of Peculiar, Missouri:

Tract 1 - 21604 S. School Road, legally described on Exhibit A to this Ordinance.

Tract 2 - 9707 E. State Route Y, Legally described on Exhibit B to this Ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
CITY OF PECULIAR, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION I. That the corporate limits of the City of Peculiar, in the County of Cass, State of
Missouri, be extended so as to embrace and include all that part of said County of Cass lying
within the following boundary lines, to-wit:

Tract 1

LOTS 7 AND 8, FLYNN’S SUBDIVISION, A SUBDIVISION IN CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI,
ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED PLAT THEREOF, OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 72,
EXCEPT THAT PART IN U.S. HIGHWAY 71 AND THAT PART WEST OF SAID HIGHWAY.

Tract 2

ALL THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 45, RANGE 32 IN CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID QUARTER QUARTER
SECTION; THENCE DUE EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER QUARTER
SECTION, A DISTANCE OF 249.45 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 2 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 05
SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 470.18 FEET; THENCE DUE WEST, A DISTANCE OF 255.00
FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID QUARTER QUARTER SECTION; THENCE
NORTH 1 DEGREES 38 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE
OF 470.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING EXCEPT THAT PART ON THE NORTH TAKEN
FOR MISSOURI STATE ROUTE YY RIGHT OF WAY.
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SECTION Il. The perimeter of the Two (2) areas proposed to be annexed is 4,597 feet, and the
length of the contiguous boundary common to the existing corporate limits of the City of
Peculiar, Missouri and the Two (2) proposed areas to be annexed is 4,126 feet, which is equal to
at least Eighty Nine (89) percent of the length of the total perimeter of the area proposed for
annexation; and

The perimeter of Tract 1 proposed to be annexed is 3,165 feet, and the length of the contiguous
boundary common to the existing corporate limits of the City of Peculiar, Missouri and that of
Tract 1 proposed to be annexed is 3,165 feet, which is equal to at least One Hundred (100)
percent of the length of the total perimeter of the area proposed for annexation; and

The perimeter of Tract 2 proposed to be annexed is 1432 feet, and the length of the contiguous
boundary common to the existing corporate limits of the City of Peculiar, Missouri and that of
Tract 2 proposed to be annexed is 961 feet, which is equal to at least Sixty Seven (67) percent of
the length of the total perimeter of the area proposed for annexation; and

SECTION 11l. The Board of Aldermen has determined, and hereby determines, that the
proposed annexation is reasonable and necessary to the proper development of the City of
Peculiar.

SECTION IV. The City of Peculiar, Missouri has developed a Plan of Intent to provide services
to the proposed area on the same basis upon which services presently are provided to the
residents of the City of Peculiar.

SECTION V: A public hearing shall be held concerning this matter and this public hearing
shall be on the 17" day of February, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall (250 S. Main Street) of
Peculiar, Missouri.

SECTION VI: Provided, however, that the annexation of the above-described real estate is
subject to the City of Peculiar, Missouri obtaining a favorable judgment from the Cass County
Circuit Court authorizing the annexation of the area.

SECTION VII: Further provided, however, that the annexation of the above-described real
estate is subject to the approval of the voters of the area subject to annexation and/or the
approval of the voters of the City of Peculiar.

SECTION VIII: The annexation of the above described real estate shall be effective
immediately following the election approving such annexation as authorized by Rev. Stat. Mo. 8
71.015.
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SECTION IX: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the
Board of Aldermen and approval by the Mayor, except as provided in Section VIII.

First Reading: January 20, 2015

Third Reading:

Second Reading:

BE IT REMEMBERED THE PRECEDING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED ON ITS
THIRD READING THIS 17/TH DAY OF EEBRUARY, 2015, BY THE FOLLOWING

VOTE:

Alderman Ford
Alderman Fines
Alderman Ray

Approved:

Holly Stark, Mayor
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Alderman McCrea
Alderman Turner
Alderman Roberts

Attest:

Janet Burlingame, City Clerk



City Administrator Chief of Police
Brad Ratliff Harry Gurin
City Clerk City Planner
Janet Burlingame Cliff McDonald
City Engineer oﬂ 1868 City Attorney
Carl Brooks MISS O'U'B“ Reid Holbrook
Business Office Municipal Offices - 250 S. Main Street, Peculiar, MO 64078 Parks Director
Trudy Prickett Phone: (816)779-5212 Facsimile: (816)779-1004 Nathan Musteen
To: Board of Aldermen

From: Brad Ratliff

Date: February 2, 2015

Re: Changing Mayor’s Term to 4 years.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Applicant: Staff

Status of Applicant: N/A

Requested Actions: Approve first reading of Bill increasing Mayor’s term to 4 years.
Date of Application: January 27, 2015

Property Location (if applicable):

PROPOSAL
Per RSMo 79.050 the Board of Aldermen may pass an ordinance to increase the term for Mayor from 2 years to
4 years subjext to a simple majority vote of the residents.

Staff feels 4 year terms would be beneficial for the City as it will allow better long range planning as well as
continuity.

Another benefit will be the decrease in annual election costs.

For general elections the City has paid approx. $18,546.79 from 2010 to current. An average of $3,709.36 per
election.

If the terms are brought to 4 years there will be a 2 year gap with no general election.

KEY ISSUES
This Bill will increase the term for Mayor to 4 years subject to voter approval at the April 7, 2015 election.

STAFF COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS
STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approval of the first reading of the proposed Ordinance.
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BILL NO. 2015-06
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PECULIAR,
MISSOURI INCREASING THE TERM OF MAYOR.

WHEREAS, Section 79.050, Missouri Revised Statutes, provides that the Board of

Aldermen may provide by ordinance, after approval of a majority of the voters voting at an
election at which the issue is submitted, for a four year term for mayor; and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it advisable and in the best interests of the citizens of the
City of Peculiar to provide a four year term for mayor.

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Peculiar,
Missouri as follows:

SECTION I. The term for Mayor is hereby increased from two (2) years to four (4) years.

SECTION II. This ordinance shall only become effective after receiving a majority vote of the
citizens of Peculiar.

SECTION I11: The effective date of this ordinance shall be , 2015.

First Reading: Second Reading:

BE IT REMEMBERED THE PRECEDING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED ON ITS

SECOND READING THIS __ DAY OF , 2015, BY THE FOLLOWING
VOTE:

Alderman Ford Alderman McCrea

Alderman Fines Alderman Turner

Alderman Ray Alderman Roberts

Approved: Attest:

Holly Stark, Mayor Janet Burlingame, City Clerk
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City Administrator Chief of Police
Brad Ratliff Harry Gurin
City Clerk City Planner
Janet Burlingame Cliff McDonald
City Engineer rm' 7 56 City Attorney
Carl Brooks MISS OU'B“ Reid Holbrook
Business Office Municipal Offices - 250 S. Main Street, Peculiar, MO 64078 Parks Director
Trudy Prickett Phone: (816)779-5212 Facsimile: (816)779-1004 Nathan Musteen
To: Board of Aldermen

From: Brad Ratliff

Date: February 2, 2015

Re: Interlocal Agreement with City of Belton for Sanitary Sewer in NW area of City.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Applicant: Staff

Status of Applicant: N/A

Requested Actions: Review Interlocal Agreement
Date of Application: January 29, 2015

Property Location (if applicable):

PROPOSAL

Review the Interlocal Agreement with the City of Belton to provide future Sanitary Sewer service to Peculiar
customers North of Y'Y Highway and West of Harper Road.

This agreement has been reviewed by legal and will be before the Belton City Council in February.

KEY ISSUES

STAFF COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Review Interlocal Agreement
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INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the Agreement) is made
and entered into this day of , 2015, by and between the CITY OF
BELTON, MISSOURI (hereinafter referred to as BELTON) and the CITY OF PECULIAR,
MISSOURI (hereinafter referred to as Peculiar).

WHEREAS, BELTON and PECULIAR are both Political Subdivision organized
existing by virtue Missouri state law and each is the owner and operator of a wastewater
system conveying, pumping facility, force main and treating wastewater for the citizens of
their respective corporate limits; and

WHEREAS, BELTON has an existing wastewater treatment plant (“WWTP”) south
of and adjacent to the intersection of Mullen Road and 211" Street in unincorporated
Cass County; and

WHEREAS, BELTON has determined that its WWTP can treat an additional, but
limited volume of wastewater that may be generated from new development on the west
side of 1-49 and the future 211™ Street Interchange; and

WHEREAS, PECULIAR has determined that from time to time it may be
necessary to purchase additional capacity from the Belton WWTP and with Belton to

maintain the system necessary to convey and the pump the new wastewater to the
WWTP; and

WHEREAS, BELTON and PECULIAR have determined that it may be mutually
beneficial and the most efficient use of their respective municipal powers to express in a
nonbinding agreement the general terms and provisions for wastewater treatment
services provided by BELTON to PECULIAR; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of BELTON and PECULIAR to enter into an Interlocal
Agreement to evidence said cooperation; and

WHEREAS, PECULIAR has entered into an engineering agreement with Carollo
Engineers with a MDNR grant to perform a feasibility study and an engineering report on
the possibility of BELTON treating the flow generated from new growth near and around
the west side of 1-49 and the future 211™ Street Interchange; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement without changing their
respective service or corporate boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of BELTON having the power to enter into

interlocal agreements authorized execution of this Agreement on the day of
, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of PECULIAR having the power to enter into

interlocal agreements authorized the execution of this Agreement on the day of
, 2015; and
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WHEREAS, the parties will consider entering into a separate binding services
contract setting forth the terms and conditions of treating wastewater at the WWTP; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and foregoing recitals, the
mutual promises and covenants hereinafter contained, and for good and valuable
consideration, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
Purpose
The purpose of this Agreement is:

1. To set out in general and in nonbinding terms the understanding between BELTON
and PECULIAR in order to allow BELTON and PECULIAR to seek all necessary
approvals and funding required in order to pursue a mutually beneficial relationship
regarding the treatment of wastewater at the WWTP that may be produced by new
growth near the future 211" Street and [-49 Interchange (the average daily flow at
build-out conditions for this area is 1.1 million gallons per day (MGD), and the
projected peak flow form this area is 3.3 MGD); and

2. To set out the intent of the parties regarding the design and construction and
maintenance of wastewater utility infrastructure for the purpose of conveying,
pumping and treating wastewater from PECULIAR, including wastewater lines,
metering facilities, pump stations and force mains.

ARTICLE Il
Duration

The parties hereto agree that this Agreement shall exist and remain in force and effect
until otherwise modified or terminated as described in this Article Il or in Article IlI,
paragraph 4. The parties may enter into a comprehensive services contract in the future
which contains the details, including terms, conditions and rates for conveying, pumping
and treating wastewater by BELTON for PECULIAR. This Agreement shall terminate as
a matter of law in the event PECULIAR and BELTON do not enter into a services
contract as described herein.
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ARTICLE 1l
Design and Construction of Wholesale Delivery Facility

PECULIAR intends to facilitate development in the area described that will require
conveyance and pumping station infrastructure sufficient to transfer the wastewater
to the WWTP to be treated.

BELTON intends to make improvements in 2014-2015 to the current WWTP. The
WWTP will be capable of treating the additional flow from the area of PECULIAR
described in this document. However, in order to treat that additional volume and
new growth in, and possibly around Belton long term, the WWTP will require other
improvements at certain times that will require PECULIAR to participate in the costs
through rates or other financing mechanisms to be determined at those times. The
plan for design and construction of all wastewater infrastructure, including
easements, required to service the 211" Street and 1-49 area to the point of delivery
has not been determined yet but will only take place with BELTON approval of the all
design elements and specifications. It has not been determined how the project cost
for all expenses incurred in the design and construction of the system of delivery,
metering, pumping station and force main will be funded. Once a funding strategy
has been identified that is in the best interest of both parties, BELTON will consider it
and may approve it as long as BELTON implements a full-cost recovery rate
structure and PECULIAR agrees to charge the new customers that rate structure.

BELTON will collaborate with PECULIAR annually and perform rate analyses every
three years to be utilized to determine user rates charged to PECULIAR. The rate
analyses and resulting rate structure will be according to American Water Works
Association best practices and will be designed such that all costs necessary to
make improvements and maintain all infrastructure are captured in a responsible
manner.

PECULIAR and BELTON will also determine costs for the maintenance of the
conveyance system, metering facility and pumping facility therein, including the force
main from the pumping station to the WWTP that will be addressed in some fashion
through a contractual relationship at the appropriate time.

ARTICLE IV
Financing
PECULIAR will be responsible, in accordance with its Code of Ordinances, for
developing the financing alternatives to propose to BELTON for the wastewater
conveyance system connected to the BELTON WWTP.
BELTON will be responsible for any upgrades required at the WWTP on the part of

PECULIAR in order to provide treatment services, and costs will be recovered in full
through user rates.
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ARTICLE V
No Separate Legal Entity

No separate legal entity shall be created under this Agreement. The parties shall be
responsible for administering this cooperative undertaking.
ARTICLE VI

Successors, Assigns, and Modifications

The public agencies mutually agree that this Agreement is not binding but merely an
expression of intent. Neither party shall assign or modify this Agreement without the
written consent of the other party. Neither party shall be obligated to advance fund any
study without the consent and participation of the other

ARTICLE VII
Contingencies

1. The parties acknowledge and agree that the ability to enter into a future binding
contract is contingent upon approval of an Interconnection Plan and future
agreements by various Missouri state agencies and other jurisdictions having
authority over the matters contained herein. It is the express goal and objective of
the parties to secure any and all necessary approvals from the appropriate
Missouri state agencies and jurisdictions in as expeditious a manner as possible.

2. This Interlocal Agreement merely sets forth the intent of the parties and does not
in and of itself impose any rights, duties or obligations on either party but is merely
a statement of intent to cooperate and pursue the execution of a binding services
contract which will contain all of the operational requirements and expectations of
the parties related to the conveyance and treatment of wastewater for PECULIAR.

ARTICLE VIII
Placing Agreement in Force
The parties shall cause this Agreement to be executed in quadruple.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above and foregoing Interlocal Agreement has been

executed in quadruple by each of the parties hereto on the date and year first above
written.
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CITY OF PECULIAR,
MISSOURI

By

Holly Stark- Mayor

ATTEST:

Janet Burlingame — City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Reid F. Holbrook — City Attorney

CITY OF BELTON,
MISSOURI

By

Jeff Davis - Mayor

ATTEST:

Patti Ledford - City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Aaron G. March - City Attorney

The foregoing Agreement was approved this day of , 2014.

BELTON ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) ss:
CASS COUNTY )
BE IT REMEMBERED that on this day of , 2015, before me, the

undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid came Jeff Davis, Mayor of
the City of Belton, a municipal corporation created by virtue of the laws of the State of Missouiri,
who is personally known to me to be such Mayor of Belton, and who is personally known to me to
be the same person who executed, as such officer, the within instrument on behalf of said City,

100



and such person duly acknowledged the execution of the same to be the act and deed of CITY
OF BELTON, MISSOURI.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the
day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My appointment expires:

PECULIAR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) ss.
CASS COUNTY )
BE IT REMEMBERED that on this day of , 2015, before me, the

undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid came Holly Stark, Mayor
of the CITY OF PECULIAR, a municipal corporation of the State of Missouri, who is personally
known to me to be such officer, and who is personally known to me to be the same person who
executed, as such officer, the within instrument on behalf of said City, and such person duly
acknowledged the execution of the same to be the act and deed of the CITY OF BELTON.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the
day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My appointment expires:
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Water Rate Distribution

slide 6

Rate Per % Rate Per % Rate Per % Rate Per
2012 1,000 Allocatio 1,000  Unaudited  Allocatio 1,000 2015 Allocatio 1,000
Actual % Allocation Gallons 2013 Actual n Gallons 2014 Actual n Gallons  Budget n Gallons
Total Expenses 1,227,216 100% $ 1351 1,413,301 100% $15.71 1,277,446 100% $17.21 2,321,701 100% $17.21
Water Expense 423,766 35% 4.67 419,630 30% 4.66 409,318 32% 5.51 513,661 22% $ 3.81
Personal Services Expen 225,166 18% 2.48 253,337 18% 2.82 288,799 23% 3.89 381,683 16% $ 2.83
Operating Expense 440,981 36% 4.85 409,054 29% 4.55 300,131 23% 4.04 399,049 17% $ 2.96
Debt Payment Expense 131,704 11% 1.45 327,600 23% 3.64 271,727 21% 3.66 434,808 19% $ 3.22
Capital Expense 5,599 0% 0.06 3,680 0% 0.04 7,471 1% 0.10 592,500 26% $ 4.39
2012 Unaudited
Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Budget
Water Expense 4.67 4.66 551 3.81
Personal Services Expen 2.48 2.82 3.89 2.83
Debt Payment Expense 1.45 3.64 3.66 3.22
Capital Expense 0.06 0.04 0.10 4.39
Operating Expense 4.85 4.55 4.04 2.96
Rate per 1,000 gallons 13.51 15.71 17.21 17.21
Sewer Rate Distribution
Rate Per % Rate Per % Rate Per % Rate Per
2012 1,000 Allocatio 1,000 ~ Unaudited Allocatio 1,000 2015  Allocatio 1,000
Actual % Allocation Gallons 2013 Actual n Gallons 2014 Actual n Gallons  Budget n Gallons
Total Expenses 1,046,779 100% $  15.00 768,738 100% $15.00 931,505 100% $15.00 1,586,301 100% $15.00
Sewer Sludge 21,725 2% 0.31 14,662 2% 0.29 21,334 2% 0.34 31,000 2% $ 0.29
Personal Services 363,540 35% 5.21 274,519 36% 5.36 371,963 40% 5.99 394,821 25% $ 3.73
Operating Costs 442,480 42% 6.34 276,913 36% 5.40 307,572 33% 4.95 321,824 20% $ 3.04
Debt Payments 215,347 21% 3.09 192,531 25% 3.76 166,630 18% 2.68 559,882 35% $ 5.29
Capital Expense 3,687 0% 0.05 10,113 1% 0.20 64,006 7% 1.03 278,774 18% $ 2.64
2012 Unaudited
Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Budget
Sewer Sludge 0.31 0.29 0.34 0.29
Personal Services 5.21 5.36 5.99 3.73
Debt Payments 3.09 3.76 2.68 5.29
Capital Expense 0.05 0.20 1.03 2.64
Operating Costs 6.34 5.40 4.95 3.04
Rate per 1,000 gallons 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00
Water Sewer Fund

Distribution of $17.21 per 1,000 Gallons

Operating Expense,
$2.96,17%
Expense,

$3.22,19%

Personal Services
Expense, $2.83, 16% Capital, $7.62, 45% "
Capital

Expense,

Debt Payment

$4.39,26%

Water Expense, $3.81
,22%

Distribution of $15.00 per 1,000 Gallons

Operating Costs,
$3.04,20% |

Debt Payments,
$5.29,35%

Other, $7.93,53%
Personal Services,
$3.73, 25%
Capital Expense,
$2.64,18%

Sewer Sludge, $0.29
2%
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